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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG
KONG LIMITED (“STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies
to which a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such
companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there
is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than
securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market
in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents
of this annual report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any
liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the
contents of this annual report.

This annual report, for which the directors (“Directors”) of First Credit Finance Group Limited
(“Company”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (“GEM Listing Rules”)
for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all
reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in
this annual report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and
there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this annual report
misleading.
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corporate Information 2 I &R
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Corporate Information 2 8 & K continued #)
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Management Discussion and Analysis £ @57 i@ R D17

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) continued to focus on conducting
money lending business by providing both secured and unsecured loans to
customers, including individuals, corporations and foreign domestic workers.
The Group's average loan balance decreased from approximately HK$611.73
million as at 31 December 2022 to approximately HK$595.00 million as at 31
December 2023.

Due to the global economic downturn and poor market sentiment, many of
the businesses operated in Hong Kong are adversely affected. Some of the
Group's customers encountered financial difficulties and liquidity problems
which adversely impact their loan repayment ability. All the above impose
challenges on the Group’'s business and increased the lending risks of the
Group. Therefore, the Group will continue to evaluate its risk management
measures and ensure a proper balance between return and risk in the long run.
To maintain its loan portfolio, the Group will continue to adopt prudent and
cautious approaches, in particular, during the loan assessment and approval
process. The Group will also keep on closely monitoring the repayment
performance of its loan portfolio and evaluating the repayment ability of the
customers.

After considering the nature of the money lending business which has no
minimum capital requirement, the size of the Company and the Group's bank
and cash balances of approximately HK$3.74 million as at 31 December 2023,
it was considered that the Company would have adequate funds to maintain
its operations under the prevailing economic environment. At the same time,
the Group has endeavoured to control its expenses by taking various measures
in budget control.

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis & I8 & 59 5@ & 20 3T continued #)

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Looking forward, with the ultimate aim to maximise value for shareholders and
enhance its position in the competitive industry, the Group will continue to
strive for maintaining revenue and credit quality on the basis of its experience
in money lending business. Meanwhile, the Group will closely monitor its
capital base from time to time to ensure adequate funding is maintained
through various means for capturing different potential opportunities.

The money lending industry is affected by the change of statutory interest rate
cap, which had been amended from 60 percent to 48 percent per annum since
the end of 2022. The money lending business remains challenging in 2024, we
shall closely monitor the operation and the risk level of the Group, in order to
stay competitive in the market.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

REVENUE

The Group’s revenue for the year under review was derived from interest
received from the provision of various types of loan products to its customers.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the revenue generated was
approximately HK$6.35 million, representing a decrease of approximately
87.46% from the revenue of approximately HK$50.69 million recorded for the
year ended 31 December 2022.

The decrease in revenue was mainly attributable to the decrease in accrued
interest from credit-impaired loans receivables during the year under review.
The Company will continue to monitor the credit risk of the loans receivables
from time to time and modify its credit assessments and control measures

when necessary.

For the year under review, the revenue of past due less than 3 months and
over 3 months but not impaired loans was approximately HK$0.01 million and
Nil respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis &2 & 59 5% & 2D M (continued )

Revenue breakdown

Wir 25 BA 4

2023
—g==

HK$’'000
FHET

Unsecured loans ISR
Personal loans BABER 43,181
Corporate loans PEENR 3,563
Foreign domestic workers loans INMEREEETIER 1,866
Sub-total INEE 48,610
Secured loans AREER
First property mortgage loans BRMERBER 257
Subordinated property mortgage loans FEERMEIRIBER 235
Other secured loans Hih B EEER 1,591
Sub-total et 2,083
Total @st 50,693
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Management Discussion and Analysis &2 & 5V 5@ 5 2 T (continued )

NET INTEREST MARGIN

The Group recorded a net interest margin of approximately 12.00% for the
year ended 31 December 2023 in respect of its money lending business.

The above net interest margin represented the ratio of net interest income
to the average balance of gross loans receivables as at the end of the year
under review after deducting certain amount of past due loans receivables
which were matured or impaired during the year under review. The net interest
margin calculated on the same basis for the corresponding period last year was
approximately 12.06%.

In respect of unsecured loans, the net interest margin increased from
approximately 12.42% for the year ended 31 December 2022 to approximately
13.78% for the year ended 31 December 2023. Meanwhile, net interest
margin in respect of secured loans decreased from approximately 10.22% for
the year ended 31 December 2022 to approximately 8.73% for the year ended
31 December 2023.

Net interest margin
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2023 2022
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Unsecured loans ERAER
Individuals A 11.77% 11.68%
Corporations % 9.12% 6.74%
Foreign domestic workers INMERERET 41.76% 44.13%
Secured loans FIREER
Individuals B A 15.64% 15.07%
Corporations 1= 8.45% 9.29%
All loans BEER
Unsecured loans EIERER 13.78% 12.42%
Secured loans BHEBE R 8.73% 10.22%
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Management Discussion and Analysis &2 & 5V 5 & 2D M «continued #)

OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAIN AND LOSS

The Group's other income recorded a decrease from approximately HK$0.72
million for the year ended 31 December 2022 to approximately HK$0.03
million for the year ended 31 December 2023. The Group’s other income for
the year ended 31 December 2023 was mainly attributable to the adjustment
of long outstanding temporary receipt, whereas in 2022 it was mainly
attributable to the government subsidy received under the Employment
Support Scheme launched by the government of Hong Kong under the “Anti-
epidemic Fund”.

Meanwhile, the Group recorded other loss of approximately HK$4.53
million for the year ended 31 December 2023 as compared to other loss of
approximately HK$29.54 million for the year ended 31 December 2022. The
decrease in other loss was mainly attributable to the decrease in fair value loss
on financial assets at FVTPL.

Details of other income and other gain and loss are set out in notes 8 and 9 to
the consolidated financial statements respectively.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

The Group’s administrative expenses for the year under review mainly
comprised employment expenses and depreciation charges. Employment
expenses included directors’ emoluments, employees’ salaries and allowances,
bonuses, pension scheme contributions and insurance premium for employees,
etc. Administrative expenses included repair and maintenance and general
insurance premiums etc. Occupancy costs included management fees,

government rent and rates as well as utilities expenses.

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis & I8 57 5@ & D HT «continued #)

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group's administrative expenses
decreased and recorded at approximately HK$10.12 million as compared
to approximately HK$13.86 million for the year ended 31 December 2022
which was mainly attributable to the decrease in employment expenses and
depreciation charges for the year under review.

Administrative expenses

BE-_T_=ZF+_A=Z=+—HILEFE &X&
B 8917 I SR A 3 8515 4910,120,0005 7T+ M
BE_Z_—_F+-A=+t—BLFEENHA
13,860,000 ;. It W EEHKEIEFEMNEE
A RITEBRRDTE-

THREX
2023
—g-=

HKS$°000

TER
Employment expenses EEMX 7,035 9,351
Occupancy costs for its office A= AR 692 199
Depreciation charges TESH 1,523 2,866
Repair and maintenance and others HEREREMAS 475 1,051
General insurance premiums —RORBRE 394 397
Total st 10,119 13,864

IMPAIRMENT LOSS ON LOANS AND INTERESTS RECEIVABLES

The Group's impairment loss mainly relates to expected credit loss (“ECL")
allowance for loans receivables. Generally speaking, ECL assessment is done
based on the Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting
date, including time value of money where appropriate. The ECL on loans
receivables are assessed individually for debtors with significant balances and/
or collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate groupings.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recorded an impairment
loss on loans receivables of approximately HK$137.07 million as compared to
approximately HK$43.14 million for the corresponding period in 2022. The
increase in impairment loss on loans receivables was principally due to an
increase in loss on derecognition of loans receivables.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recorded an impairment loss
on interests receivables of approximately 2.16 million as compared to Nil for
the corresponding period in 2022.
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Management Discussion and Analysis &2 & 5V 5 & 2D M «continued #)

The Group performs collective assessment on impairment allowance for the
loans receivables at least on a quarterly basis by dividing its loans receivables
into different groups according to the loan types, with each loan type sharing
similar credit risk characteristics, and calculates the ECL for each loan type.
The measurement of impairment allowance for collective assessment is mainly
based on the amount of loans receivables of each loan type at a point of time
and will take into account the probability of default (which may be affected by
the duration of delinquency and is calculated by using the adjusted transition
rate as the key input from the Markov Chain Model) and loss given default
(i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default which is estimated with
reference to the loans receivables’ historical bad debt recovery rate and cash
flows from the realisation of its collateral, if any) pertaining to that particular
loan type, which are derived from the assessment made by the external
professional valuer as at the latest year-end date based on the historical
repayment performance of different loan types and adjusted by forward-
looking information such as the economic and financial environment and
expected unemployment rate, etc.

The Group also performs monthly individual assessment on impairment
allowance for the loans receivables. For individual assessment, the amount of
impairment allowance on loans receivables will be considered on a case-by-
case basis by way of discounted cash flow, taking into account, among other
factors, the expected date of recovery and the fair value of the collateral (if
any).

For further details of the accounting policies regarding the impairment of
financial assets (including loans receivables) and the financial risk management
policies in respect of loans receivables, please refer to section E of note 4 and
section C of note 28 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis &

Credit risk assessments were performed by the Group before each loan was
advanced. Identity checks, financial background checks and, where applicable,
relevant public searches (such as litigation search, company search and
land search) were conducted on the borrowers and, where applicable, the
guarantor and/or the underlying companies whose shares were charged to
the Group as security. In credit assessment, the Group will normally take into
account factors including, but not limited to personal financial background
and repayment ability of the borrowers, internal and external credit checking
results, the borrowers’ repayment records in other financial institutions and,
where applicable, value of the to-be-pledged collateral and the availability of
any guarantee. During the year under review, the Group was satisfied with the
credit worthiness and the repayment ability of the borrowers after conducting
the credit risk assessment.

The Group also adopted a “two eyes” process requiring credit approval at
successively higher levels or by the credit committee of the board of Directors
("Board”) depending on, among other things, the size and nature of the

proposed transactions.

Subsequent to the drawdown of loans, to ensure that loans repayments are
punctual and past due accounts are handled efficiently, the Group actively
reviews and monitors the loan repayment status under the supervision of the
management on a regular basis.

During the year under review, the Group has closely monitored the loans
receivables for the purpose of assessing credit risk and has put more effort in
the collection procedures of the loans receivables, such as making phone calls
and sending reminders to the relevant customers from time to time. The Group
may also negotiate with customers on the repayment arrangements on a case-
by-case basis according to the circumstances of the customers. Legal actions
may be brought against the relevant customers depending on the actual
circumstances on a case-by-case basis.

E@J: Dj *ﬁ (continued #&)
AEBRERSEERANETEERRT M -H
ERA (BB R) RER AR SR ERTAE
EEFAERLOEBARETEORE MBS
%ﬁﬁ(ﬁﬂiﬁﬁ)&ﬁﬁﬁﬁ"ﬁﬁf &%(ﬁﬂuﬁ"\
R AAEREIHER) - BT Af
@*ﬂﬁ ERZERE - ﬁ?ﬁﬁTFﬁEﬂﬁﬁ/\E’\J

BAMBESREREN RERIINTEERE
HEREFAREMHE@EENERES (ER)
R TFHEANERGOEBARRES A EMBER-
REBEFE AEERETEERBRITHE BE
R MERANEERENREE

AEBERBSRBER]ZF Rig (EPEE)#
ETRGNABEME LA EIHESTS
([EsE ) EEZRESFHERLE

RERERRZ  SEREFEREENSRE
BRI ZIKEIEEEEJEE’JWETEHHFﬁA
R EREFEFGIRR

REBEFE  REBEZ ) EREYWE RGN # ik
AEEERR YAMATHREKEFEKBRE
MAE I AR REREEP RAETEHER
RR-AEETATREEEENTFHERIBER
BEFPHNERLH RTEMNEARNERBR
AEESTHEREPRIUVERTE -

Impairment loss on loans receivables

R &5 20 iR (B 5 18
2022
—T-_—
HK$'000
FH&IT
ECL on individual assessment B ENEREEEE 130,223 (922)
ECL on collective assessment SRITEHNEREEER 6,846 44,066
Total “st 137,069 43,144
Details of the ECL policy and measurement, and the movement of provision for ~ BEIFEEIZEEEBE L ENFE  ULERE

impairment and write-offs of loans receivables are disclosed in note 28(c) to
the consolidated financial statements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis 12 Z 575w & D

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

The Group's other operating expenses for the year ended 31 December 2023
mainly comprised legal and professional fees and other general expenses.

As compared to approximately HK$10.10 million for the year ended 31
December 2022, other operating expenses for the year ended 31 December
2023 decreased to approximately HK$5.29 million, which was mainly owed
to the decrease in service fees of debt recovery agencies and other general
expenses.

Other operating expenses

HibEEHX

*ﬁ (continued #&)

Hh 48 & R

AEBBE_F_=F+_A=t+—HILFEN
HitEZHAXTEREERREEZERNUREM
— MR-

BEE T __F+A=+—BHLEFEY
10,100,000 Tk HE T ==+ =
A=+ BLFENEMEERIRIEY
5,290,000 0 F ZEREBEBWNRIERBESE R H
b — 4% B9 SR A FTER o

2023

HK$’'000
FHET

Audit fees HTEA 820
Advertising and promotion expenses BERERMAS 15
Legal and professional fees ERREXER 3,201
Service fees of debt recovery agencies BEREBERRIEREE 2,714
Valuation fee HWEER 112
Other general expenses Hh—MHAxX 3,241
Total @t 10,103
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FINANCE COSTS

The Group’s finance costs for the year ended 31 December 2023 mainly
comprised interest on lease liabilities and interest on bond payable. Finance
costs decreased and recorded at approximately HK$0.15 million for the year
ended 31 December 2023, as compared to approximately HK$0.55 million for
the year ended 31 December 2022.

Finance costs

M EM

AEBHE-_ZT-_=F+A=+T—HLFEHN
HHER FTERRHEaENN B REMES
WNE - HEZZE-_=F+=-A=+—HLLFE"
BB AR W15 49150,0008 L MEBE=-Z
T ZF+ZA=+—HI1EFEA4550,000% 5T

HMBER
2023
—g-=

HK$'000

FHET
Interest on lease liabilities HEEBEHNFE 110 151
Interest on bond payable EREEHF A 38 400
Total wast 148 551

LOSS FOR THE YEAR

For the year under review, the Group recorded a decrease in the consolidated
loss attributable to owners of the Company of approximately HK$152.95
million as compared to the consolidated loss attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately HK$182.48 million for the year ended 31 December
2022, which was principally due to (i) a significant decrease in write-off of
convertible bonds for the year under review and (ii) a decrease in other loss
for the year under review as disclosed in notes 20 and 9 to the consolidated
financial statements.

FREE

HREBE_Z-_—_#+-_A=+—HLEEAR
AIEE AEAL4R A B51849182,480,000% 7T KA [l
BFE AEESSAAREEABERAEIE
2> #9152,950,0007 7T+ 1l Y = Z B ()E B F
EARREFOMBERER D R(NEBEFEHH
fth JE5 18R A BT B (LN 4R & B 75 S 2R Y 220 R BT 19
FERBAIHE) -

F-ERAEAEEARQF —T_=FFH§
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

For the year under review, the Group financed its operations by cash flow from
operating activities.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had bank and cash balances of
approximately HK$3.74 million (2022: approximately HK$19.84 million), all
of which were denominated in Hong Kong dollars. There is no minimum
capital requirement for the Group’s principal money lending business. The
Board considers that the cash level of the Group as at 31 December 2023 was

adequate for operation in terms of fund utilisation.

There was no bank borrowing as at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

As at 31 December 2023, the net current assets of the Group amounted to
approximately HK$97.46 million (2022: approximately HK$236.62 million) and
the current ratio, being the ratio of current assets to current liabilities, was
approximately 50.55 times (2022: approximately 125.19 times). The decrease
in the current ratio was mainly attributable to an increase in bond payable for
the year ended 31 December 2023.

The Group adopted a treasury policy with the aims to utilise the surplus and/or
idle funds of the Group and to achieve capital appreciation in the long-term.
Under the treasury policy, the Group may invest in diversified investment
products which the Board thinks fit, including but not limited to government
bonds, debt instruments and listed equity securities on the Stock Exchange.

Where appropriate, the Group may apply for loans and/or credit facilities from
independent third parties and banks and may conduct fund raising activities by
issuing equity shares and/or loan notes.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL AND
FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, there had been no material
acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures by the
Group. The Group had no specific future plan for material investments or
capital assets as at 31 December 2023.

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2023
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not hold any significant investments
exceeding 5% of the total asset value of the Group.

INFORMATION ON EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group employed a total of 12 full-time staff
(2022: 31 staff). The total remuneration of employees (including directors’
emoluments) for the year ended 31 December 2023 was approximately
HK$6.90 million (2022: approximately HK$9.10 million).
remuneration policies are formulated on the basis of performance,

The Group's

qualifications and experience of individual employees and with reference to the
prevailing market conditions. The remuneration packages of the employees of
the Group comprise monthly fixed salaries and discretionary year-end bonus
which may be given to employees based on their individual performance as

recognition of and reward for their contributions.

The Group adopted a staff training and development policy with the aims
to improve and enhance its competitiveness in the financial market as high
quality staff training forms the foundation of the provision of superior financial
services to the customers. Staff training (including the distribution of training
materials) is provided regularly on any updates or information in relation to
money lending, anti-money laundering (“AML") and anti-corruption with
reference to the fast-changing market environment, the business objectives of
the Group and the relevant requirements of the regulatory bodies.

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has pledged its loans receivables with
an aggregate amount of approximately HK$8,000,000 as security for a bond
issued by the Group during the year ended 31 December 2023. Further details
of the pledge of loans receivables and the bond are set out in notes 19 and 23

to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

GEARING RATIO

Gearing ratio is calculated as the net debt (being total liabilities less bank and
cash balances) divided by the sum of the adjusted capital (being the share
capital, retained profits/accumulated losses and other reserves) and net debt.

The Group recorded a net cash of approximately HK$3.74 million as at 31
December 2023 (2022: a net cash of approximately HK$17.93 million).
Therefore, the Group has a zero gearing ratio as at 31 December 2023 (2022:
zero gearing ratio).
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

During the year under review, the Group was principally engaged in the money
lending business in Hong Kong. As the revenue and the cost of business
was principally denominated in Hong Kong dollars, the exposure to the risk
of foreign exchange rate fluctuations for the Group is minimal. Hence, no
financial instrument for hedging was employed during the year ended 31
December 2023.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2023 (2022:
HK$Nil).

SUSPENSION OF TRADING

Trading in the shares of the Company has been suspended since 24 November
2017 pursuant to the direction of the Securities and Futures Commission of
Hong Kong (“SFC”) made under Section 8(1) of the Securities and Futures
(Stock Market Listing) Rules (Chapter 571V of the Laws of Hong Kong) and will
remain suspended until further notice.

Announcements were made by the Company on 1 August 2018, 1 November
2018, 1 February 2019, 2 May 2019, 1 August 2019, 1 November 2019, 31
January 2020, 29 April 2020, 31 July 2020, 30 October 2020, 1 February
2021, 30 April 2021, 30 July 2021, 29 October 2021, 28 January 2022, 28
April 2022, 28 July 2022, 28 October 2022, 27 January 2023, 27 April 2023,
27 July 2023, 25 October 2023 and 26 January 2024 pursuant to Rule 17.26A
of the GEM Listing Rules.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 24 June 2019,
the Stock Exchange has withheld exercising its right to delist the Company
although trading in its shares remained suspended on 31 July 2019. As such,
trading in the shares of the Company will continue to be suspended until
further notice.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 26 January 2024,
the Company has continued its effort in communicating with and addressing
the concern of the SFC with a view to achieving a resumption of trading of
its shares as soon as possible. The Company’s trade resumption application
is still pending and the Company is not in a position to provide any concrete
resumption timeframe at this stage. The Company and its legal representatives
will closely follow up with this matter.

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2023
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corporate Governance Report T EBHRS

The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report (“CG
Report”) for the year ended 31 December 2023. This CG Report highlights the
key corporate governance practices of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining statutory and
regulatory standards of corporate governance. The Board believes that sound
and reasonable corporate governance practices are essential for the growth of
the Group and for safeguarding the shareholders’ interests. The principles set
out in the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) contained in Appendix
C1 to the GEM Listing Rules have been applied in maintaining an effective
Board, sound internal controls, and transparency and accountability to all
shareholders.

To the best knowledge of the Board, throughout the year ended 31 December
2023, save for the code provisions C.2.1 to C.2.9 and F.2.2 of the CG Code as
detailed below, the Company had complied with all the code provisions set out
in the CG Code and no other deviation from the CG Code during the year had
been noted by the Company.

Details of the deviations from code provisions C.2.1 to C.2.9 and F.2.2 of
the CG Code are set out under the paragraphs headed “Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer (“CEO")", "Directors’ Induction and Continuing Professional
Development Programme” and “Communications With Shareholders and
Investors and Investor Relations” in this CG Report.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by directors on terms no less exacting than the required standard of dealings
set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific
enquiries of all the Directors, each of the Directors confirmed that he/she had
complied with the required standard of dealings and the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by directors adopted by the Company
throughout the year ended 31 December 2023. No incident of non-compliance
during the year was noted by the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

RESPONSIBILITIES AND DELEGATION OF THE BOARD

The Board has a balance of skill and experience and a balanced composition
of executive and non-executive Directors. It is responsible for formulating
the Group’s long-term strategy, determining and approving the Group's
significant transactions and supervising the management to ensure thorough
implementation of the Group’s policies and effective performance of their
duties. The Board also communicates with the shareholders of the Company
and regulatory bodies and makes recommendation to the shareholders on final

dividend and approves the declaration of any interim dividend.

The Board is accountable to the shareholders for the strategic development of
the Company with the goal of maximising long-term shareholders’ value, while
balancing broader stakeholders’ interests.

As of the date of this CG report, the Company has complied with Rules 5.05(1)
and (2), and 5.05A of the GEM Listing Rules that the Board includes at least
three independent non-executive Directors, which represents at least one-
third of the Board and at least one of the independent non-executive Directors
possesses the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

The Company received an annual confirmation from each of the independent
non-executive Directors stating his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the
GEM Listing Rules and considers each of them to be independent.

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section headed
"Biographical Details of Directors” from pages 38 to 40 of the annual report of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2023.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the company secretary of
the Company (“Company Secretary”), management staff and the compliance
officer who is mainly responsible for ensuring that the Company is in
compliance with the GEM Listing Rules and advising the Board on compliance
matters. Directors are also provided with access to independent professional
advice, where necessary, in carrying out their obligations as Directors, at the
expense of the Company.

The Board has delegated the day-to-day management to the executive
Directors and management staff of the Company who regularly review the
financial results and performance of the Group and make financial and
operational decisions for the implementation of strategies and plans approved
by the Board.

There is no relationship (financial, business, family or otherwise) between
members of the Board and between the chairman of the Board (“Chairman”)
and the chief executive officer of the Company (“CEO").
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ROTATION AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company (“Bye-laws”), at each annual
general meeting (“AGM"), one-third of the Directors for the time being (or,
if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less
than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation, provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Such
retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election and shall continue to act as a
Director throughout the meeting at which he retires.

In accordance with the Bye-laws, the Directors shall have the power from time
to time and at any time to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a
casual vacancy on the Board or, subject to authorisation by the shareholders
in general meeting, as an addition to the existing Board. Any Director so
appointed shall hold office until the next following AGM and shall then be
eligible for re-election.

The executive Directors have entered into service agreements with the
Company for a term of no more than three years. The Company has also issued
a letter of appointment to each of the independent non-executive Directors
for a term of two years. All Directors are subject to retirement, re-election and
removal in accordance with the Bye-laws.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual and code provisions C.2.2 to C.2.9 set out the main
responsibilities of the chairman. As disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 11 March 2020, Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim, a former executive
Director and Chairman of the Board, passed away on 9 March 2020. Since then
and up to the date of this report, the position of the Chairman has remained
vacant. Compliance with code provisions C.2.1 to C.2.9 was therefore not
possible during the year ended 31 December 2023.

Notwithstanding the absence of a Chairman, the Board, which comprises
experienced Directors who meet from time to time to discuss issues affecting
the operation of the Group, has been able to continue performing its
functions effectively and efficiently. In view of the simple structure of the
Company, significant decisions are made by the Board as a whole while
the daily operation and management are monitored by the Chief Executive
Officer. Before each Board meeting, all Directors receive adequate information
and relevant documents in a timely manner and are properly briefed on
issues arising at Board meetings. All Directors, including the independent
non-executive Directors, have made different contributions to the issues
discussed at the Board meetings and the Board was able to make and
implement decisions promptly in response to the changing environment.
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During the year ended 31 December 2023, Ms. Ho Yuen May May acted as
the CEO. The CEO is responsible for overseeing the Company's day-to-day
management and operations as well as to implement objectives, strategies and
policies approved and delegated by the Board.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

As at the date of this CG Report, the Company had five independent non-
executive Directors and each of them entered into a letter of appointment with
the Company for a term of two years.

BOARD MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE

Regular Board meetings are scheduled to be held four times a year on a
quarterly basis with notice given to the Directors at least 14 days in advance.
For other Board meetings involving discussion and resolution of significant
issues in relation to the operation of the Company, notice is given in a
reasonable time in advance.

Before each Board meeting, all Directors are provided with a draft agenda and
the accompanying Board papers at least three days in advance or such other
period as agreed in order to allow the Directors to include any other matters
in the agenda that are required to be discussed or resolved at the meeting. To
enable the Directors to make informed decisions, adequate and appropriate
information in relation to the matters of the meeting are also sent to all
Directors in a timely manner. According to the GEM Listing Rules, any director
who or whose close associates (or associates for connected transactions) have
a material interest in the contract or arrangement or any other proposal to
be approved at a board meeting shall abstain from voting on the relevant
resolutions and not to be counted in the quorum at the meeting.

The Company Secretary is responsible for keeping all minutes of the Board
meetings. Draft minutes are normally circulated to Directors for comments
within reasonable time after each meeting and the final version is made
available to them for their review and signing.
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The attendance records of each Director at the Board meetings and annual
general meeting during the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in the
following table:

Name of Directors
EEla

Executive Directors
BITES

Ms. Ho Yuen May May (CEQ)
gzt (7TBAAEE)
Ms. Lai Szu Yu
BRIt

Mr. Lui Cheuk Fung
REEEE

Ms. Xie Si

Bl

Independent non-executive Directors

BIAFPITES

Mr. Choy Sze Chung Jojo — resigned as an independent non-executive Director
on 30 November 2023

BERBELE -R B =F+-A=TABHEBIIFNTES

Dr. Fung Kam Man

588+

Mr. Li Long
BESEHE

Mr. Wang Zhiwei

THEMERE

Mr. Wong Kin Ning

HERELL

Mr. Wong Shui Yeung — appointed as an independent non-executive Director
on 2 February 2024

B AEE-R_ZE-_NMF-_A—HEZERBUIFRITES

REBE-ZZ_=F+-_F=+—BILFE 5F
EHFEZS SR MBRRBFRENREKRIIW

T~

Attended/number of meeting held
HERE,EHBITRE

Board Annual general

meeting

EEeEs

4/4

4/4

4/4

4/4

4/4

4/4

4/4

4/4

4/4

0/0

E—ERAEREEFRAF

meeting

BRRBEXE

m”m

I7Al

171

7

7

I7Al

171

7

I7Al

0/0

T FFR
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Corporate Governance Report 1R E B continued #)
DIRECTORS' INDUCTION AND CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

According to code provision C.1.1 of the CG Code, every newly appointed
director should receive a comprehensive, formal and tailored induction on
appointment. They also receive policies and procedures of the Company as
well as the general, statutory and regulatory obligations of being a Director to
ensure that he/she is sufficiently aware of his/her responsibilities under GEM
Listing Rules and other relevant regulatory requirements.

Code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code requires all directors to participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. To ensure that all Directors’ contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant, during the year ended 31 December 2023, all the
Directors had participated in continuous professional development by attending
training courses provided by professional firms or institutions, or reading
materials provided by the Company regarding updates on the GEM Listing
Rules and relevant regulatory requirements. All Directors confirmed that they
had complied with the code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code during the year

under review.

BOARD COMMITTEES

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee was established in 2011 with its written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. As at the date of this report, the
audit committee comprised four independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Wong Shui Yeung (chairman of the audit committee), Dr. Fung Kam Man,
Mr. Wang Zhiwei and Mr. Wong Kin Ning.

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2023
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The audit committee held five meetings during the year ended 31 December
2023. The composition of the audit committee and the attendance records
of each member at the audit committee meetings held during the year ended
31 December 2023 are set out below:

Name of committee members
EEENEK®E
Mr. Wong Shui Yeung (chairman of the audit committee)
— appointed as the chairman of the audit committee on 2 February 2024

5\% (continued #&)

\//

BE_T_=ZF+_HA=T-RLFE FEKZ
E2AMOARER BEREZBEEMEARRERER
BE_T_=F+_A=+-HLFERTNE
ZEEESAMEELERIINT

Attended/number of
meeting held

ey,

BRETRY

0/0

B RE (FEZESLTE) N -_MF_A_REZEIRERZESLE

Dr. Fung Kam Man
ik D g
Mr. Wang Zhiwei
FHEHEEE
Mr. Wong Kin Ning
ERESE
Mr. Choy Sze Chung Jojo (former chairman of the audit committee)
— ceased to be the chairman of the audit committee on 30 November 2023

BRRELE (HFEKZEELTE) R Z_=F+-A=+THRIERZ

The primary function of the audit committee is to monitor the integrity of the
Company’s financial statements, financial reports and accounts and to review
the financial and accounting policies and practices of the Group. It also makes
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of external auditors and reviews the Company’s financial controls, risk
management and internal control systems ("RM & IC Systems”) on a regular

basis.

During the year under review, the audit committee has reviewed the Group's
quarterly, interim and annual financial results, the Group’s financial reporting
system, the risk management (“RM") & internal control (“IC") systems and the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal audit function. It has discussed with
the management on the RM & IC systems to ensure that the management has
performed its duty to have effective systems. The audit committee has also
made recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment of the external
auditors after reviewing the scope of work offered, taking into account their
remuneration and terms of engagement.

During the year under review, the Board did not take a different view from the
audit committee on the appointment of external auditors.

As of the date of this CG report, the Company has complied with Rule
5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules that the audit committee comprises
non-executive Directors only, with a minimum of three members, at least one of
whom is an independent non-executive Director with appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise, and
that the audit committee is chaired by an independent non-executive Director
and the majority of the members are independent non-executive Directors.

5/5

5/5

5/5

5/5

B TREG

ERZEENIENRARERARAMBREK
FBHRERFENTEYE TREAEETHE R
EHMBEEER -BEREZRENRERME EFE
ERBEBRIIN ERBMMEESRHER LT
Hma AR RFBEE RRERENRAEER
Z([EREERABEIZER]) -

REEFER BERZESEEHNAEENTE
THREFUBEE REARRPBERRL

mEpER ([ERER]) KRR ([AEREE])
BE URARBAMBERBE KR LD LR
EEETwmEREE RN ERAREREE
ERTEBRERIAMNER -BERZTESN R
T IMIB A SR HE (1 6 T4 0 R I E B T B A A
Rz TEREFEZEIEREMOEFSRLY
B e

REBFERN
iﬁa%ﬁﬂﬁﬁ°

YT EIN LB BRZ

MRAGEERMETERY ARQF D ETGEM
EHRAIFES 285 MERZESGRAFRTE
= BERI=ZEAKE HPRI-BZREABEE
MBEXER HEABEENSHIAENTBE
BERNBIFJTES URERZEEFH
BYFRTESEFEEIRE BEBYENERR
BUERITES-

E-ERASRKEERAR —T-=FFH

25



26

-

Corporate Governance Report 1R E B continued #)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee was established in 2011 with its written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. As at the date of this report, the
nomination committee comprised four independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Wong Kin Ning (chairman of the nomination committee), Dr. Fung
Kam Man, Mr. Wang Zhiwei and Mr. Wong Shui Yeung.

The nomination committee held two meetings during the year ended
31 December 2023. The composition of the nomination committee and the
attendance records of each member at the nomination committee meetings
held during the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out below:

Name of committee members

EEERE®E

T —FR HEMBEERE
HELEXBEARTH RAREAH REEZEEA
MEBIIEATES MERELRE (REEZEE

IR BRXEL IEERERERFLEEAR
Bk o

HEZZT-_=F+-_A=T—HLFE RELZ
BERITMAE %ﬁ% ZEEHEKRREKER
HE-_Z-_—F+-A=-+—HIEFEETHIE
FLESSENHERERINT:

Attended/number of
meeting held
RBRE

".;"'é BITRE

Mr. Wong Kin Ning (chairman of the nomination committee) 2/2
BRERE (BEZFEE8F/E)

Mr. Choy Sze Chung Jojo — ceased to be a member of the nomination committee on 30 November 2023 2/2
BRREE -R_B_=ZF+-A=THARIREEZEGLZERK

Dr. Fung Kam Man 2/2
58RI+

Mr. Wang Zhiwei 2/2
EEHEMERE

Mr. Wong Shui Yeung — appointed as a member of the nomination committee on 2 February 2024 0/0

BEMAFRE-RE_MF_A_HEZERRELEEGZESE

The primary function of the nomination committee is to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board and make recommendations to the Board
on suitable candidates for appointment as Directors, re-appointment or re-
designation of Directors, succession planning for Directors and assessment of
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors.

All appointments of Directors will ultimately be based on merit while taking
into account the measurable objectives with regard to the benefits of
diversity on the Board. Candidate can be nominated by any Director for the
nomination committee’s consideration. Nomination committee will evaluate
the personal profile of the candidate based on the selection criteria as set out
in the nomination policy and undertake adequate due diligence in respect of
each proposed candidate. After comprehensive assessment, the nomination
committee will then make appropriate recommendations to the Board for
approval.
culture and educational background, skills, professional experience, character

Such criteria including but not limited to gender, age, ethnicity,

and integrity, knowledge, length of service and other factors that the Company
deems relevant.

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2023
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The nomination committee will review the nomination policy and the board
diversity policy on a regular basis, discuss any revision that may be required
and recommends any proposed changes to the Board for approval.

Since Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim, the former Chairman, passed away on 9 March
2020, the nomination committee has been paying effort in identifying
candidates suitably qualified to fill the vacancy. As at the date of this CG
Report, the position of Chairman remained vacant. Despite such vacancy, the
nomination committee believes that with the support of experienced and
high-calibre individuals including but not limited to the executive Directors,
the balance of power and authority has been adequately maintained by the
operation of the Board as a whole.

The nomination committee considered that an appropriate balance of diversity
was maintained on the Board, which comprised members of both gender
and of different qualifications and experience. In addition, the nomination
committee also assessed the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors as well as discussed on and reviewed the retirement and re-election

of Directors and other relevant issues.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee was established in 2011 with its written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. As at the date of this report, the
remuneration committee comprised four independent non-executive Directors,
namely Dr. Fung Kam Man (chairman of the remuneration committee),
Mr. Wang Zhiwei, Mr. Wong Kin Ning and Mr. Wong Shui Yeung.
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The remuneration committee held three meetings during the year ended 31 HBE T - =€+ _-_A=+—HBILtEE FTHZ
December 2023. The composition of the remuneration committee and the EBE&RITZREeFZ -FHZESHKLEKER
attendance records of each member at the remuneration committee meetings #HE_ZT-_=F+_A=+—BULEFERITHOH
held during the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out below: MEZEggFZNHELRERIMAT :
Attended/number of
meeting held
HERE
EBHRETRY
Name of committee members
EEEREK®A
Dr. Fung Kam Man (chairman of the remuneration committee) 3/3
BHRXEL (FMEZE 2L E)
Mr. Choy Sze Chung Jojo — ceased to be a member of the remuneration committee on 30 November 2023 3/3
BEREE -RN T -_=F+—-A=1THERLILFMHNEZESZERK
Mr. Wang Zhiwei 3/3
FHEBEEE
Mr. Wong Kin Ning 3/3
HEELAE
Mr. Wong Shui Yeung — appointed as a member of the remuneration committee on 2 February 2024 0/0

wmiEFAE-R_E_NF _A_HEZERFNEESEE

The primary duties of the remuneration committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure of the remuneration
of all Directors and senior management and to determine the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior management, including
benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation payments, and ensure
none of the Directors or any of their associates will determine his/her own

remuneration.

The remuneration committee adopted the approach under code provision
E.1.2(c)(i) of the CG Code and is authorised to determine, with delegated
responsibility, the remuneration packages as well as the terms of the service
contracts of the executive Directors and senior management of the Company.
In addition, during the year under review, it has reviewed the remuneration
policy and structure and assessed the performance of Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, there was no senior management
other than the Directors.

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2023
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CREDIT COMMITTEE

The Company had set up a credit committee in 2007 for the purpose of better
management of its credit risk and credit operations. The members of the
credit committee are responsible for, among other things, enacting marketing
strategy and issuing lending guidelines from time to time in line with the
market change, approving and overseeing the Group's credit policy, monitoring
the performance of credit officers and the quality of the loans and providing
periodical reports to the Board for review. As at the date of this report, the
credit committee comprised four executive Directors, namely Mr. Lui Cheuk
Fung (chairman of credit committee), Ms. Ho Yuen May May, Ms. Lai Szu Yu
and Ms. Xie Si.

The credit committee held one meeting during the year ended 31 December
2023. The composition of the credit committee and the attendance records of
each member at the credit committee meeting held during the year ended 31
December 2023 are set out below:

Name of committee members

EEEHERA

Mr. Lui Cheuk Fung (chairman of the credit committee)
RERARE (FEZE581F)

Ms. Ho Yuen May May

fa] % 22 +

Ms. Lai Szu Yu

BRIzt

Ms. Xie Si

Bl

COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

The compliance committee was established in 2010 to serve the corporate
governance function of the Company with the aim to ensure the compliance
of the Group with relevant laws, rules and regulations applicable to the Group
from time to time, in particular, the Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter
163 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“MLO"), the GEM Listing Rules and the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
("SFO"). The major duties of the compliance committee include, to develop
and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and
make recommendations to the Board, to review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior management, to
review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements, to develop, review and monitor the code
of conduct and compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors and
to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the
corporate governance report.
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As at the date of this report, the compliance committee comprised one
executive Director, namely Ms. Lai Szu Yu, and four independent non-executive
Directors, namely Dr. Fung Kam Man (chairman of the compliance committee),
Mr. Wang Zhiwei, Mr. Wong Kin Ning and Mr. Wong Shui Yeung.

The compliance committee held four meetings during the year ended
31 December 2023. The composition of the compliance committee and the
attendance records of each member at the compliance committee meetings
held during the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out below:

RABERM GREE@h —RATES HIHE
Bzt RUBBEIIFNTESR DEHXEL
(ARZEEIRE) THEMEEE EREXER
EHinFAEEMK -

HE_ T - ZF+-_A=+—HILFE AHZ
EERTUAREFR - 6HEZESHREEKER
HE-_Z-_=ZF+-A=Z+—BHIEFEETHNE
REEggRMLFERHRIAT

Attended/number of
meeting held

R

EHRETARE
Name of committee members
EEEREK®EA
Dr. Fung Kam Man (chairman of the compliance committee) 4/4
B EL (EHEEEF/E)
Mr. Choy Sze Chung Jojo — ceased to be a member of the compliance committee on 30 November 2023 4/4
BEEREE -RN_ZE-_=F+—-A=1THRILEHZESZENHK
Ms. Lai Szu Yu 4/4
BEFZt
Mr. Wang Zhiwei 4/4
TEEEE
Mr. Wong Kin Ning 4/4
BEREkrt
Mr. Wong Shui Yeung — appointed as a member of the compliance committee on 2 February 2024 0/0

BNFEE-R-E-_ME-_A-HEZERAMEEGESR

The compliance committee regularly reviews matters regarding the compliance
of the Group with the MLO, the GEM Listing Rules, the SFO and other relevant
laws and regulations applicable to the Group. The Company has adopted
relevant compliance manuals which govern the Group's compliance matters in
relation to the MLO, the SFO, the GEM Listing Rules as well as other relevant
regulations.
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During the year under review, the compliance committee had no material
findings on the compliance issues of the Group. Meanwhile, it has recorded
the issues identified during the review and made several suggestions to the
Board and the management of the Company on issues particularly concerning
internal control, environmental, social and governance and corporate
governance. For instance, the compliance committee (i) reviewed and
monitored the training and continuous professional development of Directors,
senior management and other employees in respect of compliance matters
(including AML training and anti-corruption training); (ii) formulated, reviewed,
and monitored the employees’ code of conduct and compliance manual to
synchronise with the latest applicable laws and regulations and the current
practices of the Group; (iii) reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure of the Company's policies and practices on corporate
governance in this CG Report; and (iv) reviewed and monitored the Company's
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.
Also, the Company’s internal control systems and the Company’s internal audit
function’s effectiveness are regularly reviewed by the compliance committee.
The Company has acted and would continue to act on the recommendations

of the compliance committee.

CREDIT REVIEW COMMITTEE

The credit review committee was established in 2018 for the purpose of
enhancing risk management and internal control of the Group. The major
duties of the credit review committee include: conduct periodic reviews on
different loan cases based on the credit review report and the past due loan
report prepared by the credit control department for the purpose of monitoring
credit risk. The credit review committee will give recommendations when
it deems fit. The credit review committee will also review the cases of the
approved loans to see whether such loans were approved in accordance with
the credit policy of the Group.

As at the date of this report, the credit review committee comprised three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Fung Kam Man (chairman of
the credit review committee), Mr. Wang Zhiwei and Mr. Wong Kin Ning.
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The credit review committee held one meeting during the year ended
31 December 2023. The composition of the credit review committee and the
attendance record of each member at the credit review committee meeting
held during the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out below:

Name of committee members

FEENEK®E

Dr. Fung Kam Man (chairman of the credit review committee)
BRNEL (FEERZEELE)

Mr. Wang Zhiwei

THEMERE

Mr. Wong Kin Ning

HgELAL

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements for
each financial year, which should provide a true and fair view of the Company’s
financial information. In preparing the financial statements, the Directors
have consistently selected and applied appropriate accounting policies and
standards. The statement of the auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Company is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 76 to 82 of the annual report of the

Company for the year ended 31 December 2023.
COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company engages an external service provider, Mr. Wong King Sum, as the
Company Secretary. He is a member of CPA Australia and an associate member
of The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute. His primary contact person
at the Company is Ms. Ho Yuen May May, an executive Director and CEO of
the Company. During the year ended 31 December 2023, he has taken no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional trainings respectively to update his skills
and knowledge.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year under review, the remuneration paid or payable to the external
auditors of the Company for the audit and non-audit services provided
amounted to HK$0.69 million and HK$0.30 million respectively. The non-audit
services represented the review of interim and quarterly results of the Group by
the auditors.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Risk management and internal control are essential elements of corporate
governance. Effective risk management and internal control facilitate the day-
to-day operation and business development of the Group while maintaining
risk at an optimal level.

SYSTEM FEATURES

The RM and IC Systems of the Company are designed to identify and monitor
risks from day-to-day operations and they are embodied by the Board through
the relevant board committees, the management, the departments and the
internal audit function.

The Board recognises its responsibilities to evaluate and determine the nature
and extent of the risks the Group is willing to take in achieving the strategic
objectives of the Group, and ensures that the Company has established and
maintained appropriate and effective RM and IC Systems. The Board is also
responsible for overseeing the management in the design, implementation
and monitoring of the RM and IC Systems on an ongoing basis. In this regard,
the Board conducts evaluation on the effectiveness of the RM and IC Systems
established and maintained by the management of the Company at least
annually. The review covers all relevant financial, operational and compliance
controls and reports on any failure of or deficiency in the RM and IC Systems.
Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has conducted an annual review on the effectiveness of the RM and
IC Systems of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 and considered
these systems effective and adequate.

The Audit Committee The audit committee is responsible for overseeing
the Company’s financial reporting system and the RM and IC Systems. It
also develops a regular platform to discuss the RM and IC Systems with the
management to ensure that the management has performed its duty to
maintain effective systems. Such discussion includes the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function. The audit committee
considers the major investigation findings on risk management and internal
control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and the
management’s response to these findings. The audit committee also regularly
reviews the findings and opinions of the internal audit function and the
management to evaluate the effectiveness of the RM and IC Systems.
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Credit Review Committee The credit review committee was established in
January 2018 for the purpose of enhancing risk management and internal control
of the Group, mainly on the aspects of credit risk. The committee has conducted
periodic reviews on issues including credit quality of various cases including cases
of newly drawn loans and overdue loans. Reviews on current loan cases are also
conducted as a continuous monitoring on credit quality. Results and findings of

the review are submitted to the Board for further discussion.

The Management and Departments The management is responsible
for designing, implementing and monitoring of the RM and IC Systems.
The management implements and takes day-to-day responsibility for the
Group's policies and manuals on risk management and internal control. For
instance, the loans department of the Group, as the daily operation units, are
responsible for reviewing and reporting potential risks from time to time to the
management.

Inside Information Handling and Dissemination The Company has also
adopted the disclosure policy and procedures to promote consistent disclosure
practices in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules and the SFO. The policy
and procedure set out the mechanism of identifying the potential inside
information and escalating the matters to the Board to decide whether to
make relevant disclosure in a timely manner.

RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS

Risk Assessment and
Measurement

B AT 4G K w T &

Risk Identification

22 B 58k B

Risk Identification The loans department and the major subsidiaries of
the Group are required to report on material risks identified in the risk
management report (on department or subsidiary level) which is submitted to
the management periodically.

Risk Assessment and Measurement The internal processes of risk assessment
and measurement involve the participation of management in assessing the
risk exposure such as identifying the impact of potential risk. The management
reviews and scrutinises the material risks and ensures that appropriate
controls and measures are in place or in progress. The management, through
consolidating, filtering and prioritising processes, compiles a risk management
report (on Company level) to the audit committee and the internal audit
function. Following review by the audit committee and the internal audit
function, the company risk management report would be submitted to the
Board.
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Risk Control and Mitigation The management considers the risks and
material internal control defects identified and recommends appropriate
measures to control and mitigate risks as well as resolve material internal
control defects. For instance, the management reviews the risk management
report (on Company level) from time to time. Such measures vary according to
the type of risks or defects and resources available.

Risk Monitoring The management, in conjunction with the audit committee,
regularly monitors the Company’s risk exposure and reviews the effectiveness
of the RM and IC Systems in terms of risk control and mitigation. For instance,
the risk management policy is subject to regular reviews in order to respond
to any significant changes to the products, services or relevant laws and
regulations that might impact the risk exposure of the Company.

DIVERSITY

An appropriate balance of diversity was maintained on the Board, which
comprised members of both gender. All appointments of Directors will take
into account the measurable objectives with regard to the benefits of diversity
on the Board to develop a pipeline of potential successors to the Board
to maintain gender diversity. For the year ended 31 December 2023, the
workforce was comprised of approximately 68.8% male and approximately
31.2% female.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board believes that transparent and timely disclosure of the Group’s
information will enable shareholders and investors to make the best investment
decision and to have better understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. It is also vital for developing and maintaining continuing
relationship with the Company’s potential and existing investors.

The Company maintains a website at “www.fcfg.com.hk” as a communication
platform with its shareholders and investors, where the Group's business
developments and operations, financial information, corporate governance
practices and other information are available for public access. Shareholders
and investors may also write directly to the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong at Room 1, 7/F, Yue Thai Commercial Building, 128
Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong or via email to enquiry@firstcredit.com.hk
for any inquiries. Inquiries will be dealt with in an informative and timely
manner.
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The Board considers that general meetings of the Company provide an
important channel for the shareholders to exchange views with the Board.
According to code provision F.2.2 of the CG Code, the chairman of the Board
should attend the annual general meeting. In the absence of the Chairman of
the Board since the decease of Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim, an executive Director of
the Company, Mr. Lui Cheuk Fung, was appointed as the chairman of the AGM
held on 21 June 2023 and was available to answer questions at the AGM.
The chairman of each of the audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee also endeavor to be available at the AGM to answer
any questions raised by the shareholders.

Given the above, it is believed that adequate shareholders’ communication
policy has been put in place to achieve effective communication during the
year ended 31 December 2023.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, there was no significant change in
the memorandum of continuance and the Bye-laws of the Company.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

It is the Company’s responsibility to ensure that its shareholders' interests are
well-protected. To do so, the Company maintains on-going dialogues with its
shareholders to communicate with them and encourage their participation
in AGM and other general meetings. Registered shareholders are notified by
post for the convening of general meetings of the Company. Notice of general
meeting contains agenda, proposed resolutions and a proxy form. All registered
shareholders are entitled to attend annual and special general meetings of
the Company, provided that their names have been recorded in the register of
members of the Company on the relevant record dates of the meetings.

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, the Board may, whenever it thinks fit, call for special
general meeting. Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid-up
capital of the Company carrying the right to vote at general meetings of the
Company as of the date of deposit of the requisition, shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to
require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within
two months after the deposit of such requisition. If the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition, the requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one half
of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a meeting,
but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three

months from the said date.
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Pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, (i) shareholders representing
not less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all shareholders
having a right to vote at the general meeting; or (ii) not less than one hundred
shareholders, can submit a written requisition stating the resolution which is
intended to be moved at a general meeting, or to submit a statement of not
more than one thousand words with respect to the matter referred to in any

proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting.

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests in respect of their rights
as mentioned above to the Company's principal place of business in Hong
Kong or via email as set out in the paragraph headed “Communication with

Shareholders and Investors and Investor Relations” above.
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Biographical Details of Directors ES < ER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Ho Yuen May May, aged 56, is an executive Director and the CEO of
the Company. She joined the Group as Chief Executive Officer in March 2020
and was appointed as an executive Director in October 2020. Ms. Ho was a
managerial staff responsible for the overall management, business strategy
and development of Asia Wealth Securities Limited, a company incorporated in
Hong Kong and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company in 2018. Ms. Ho
graduated from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1990 with a degree
of Bachelor of Social Science majoring in Journalism and Communications. She
has more than 10 years of experience in the securities industry with extensive
management experience, in particular experience as a responsible officer
specialised in Type 1 (dealing in securities) regulated activity under the SFO.

Ms. Lai Szu Yu, aged 35, joined the Company as an executive Director in
April 2019, and was appointed as the compliance officer of the Company in
December 2019. Ms. Lai graduated from the University of Southern California
in 2011 with a degree of Bachelor of Arts majoring in Economics. She has
different experience in financial accounting and education. She used to work
at a law firm in Hong Kong, overseeing and streamlining the firm’s operations.
She managed the administration and accounting departments.

Mr. Lui Cheuk Fung, aged 32, joined the Company and was appointed as
an executive Director in April 2021, he is also the chairman of the Credit
Committee of the Company. He was the portfolio manager of Masan Capital
and responsible for the research activities and investment decision of the
fund in 2020. Mr. Lui was a responsible officer to carry out type 4 (advising
on securities) and type 9 (asset management) regulated activity under the
SFO. Mr. Lui has over 5 years of experience in the asset management industry
with solid experience in buy-side research and portfolio management. Before
joining Masan Capital, Mr. Lui had worked as an analyst at various financial
institutions. Mr. Lui started his career at BOCI-Prudential Asset Management
Limited in 2015 and served as analyst at BlackRock Inc and private equity
associate at Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank Limited. Mr. Lui obtained his Bachelor
of Business Administration from The University of Bath in the UK in 2015.

Ms. Xie Si, aged 35, joined the Company as an executive Director in
September 2017. Ms. Xie is also a director of a subsidiary of the Company.
Ms. Xie is responsible for supervising the overall operation and management,
formulating market strategies and ensuring the loan quality of the Group.
Ms. Xie graduated from Southwest University of Science and Technology with
a bachelor’s degree in accountancy. Ms. Xie has over 11 years of experience
in banking and financial industry. She has extensive experiences in providing
financial services to the customers, including corporate and individual clients.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Fung Kam Man, aged 60, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director in July 2016. Dr. Fung has obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Business
Administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong, a degree of Master
of Science in Financial Management from the University of London and a
degree of Doctor of Philosophy awarded by the University of Nottingham. Dr.
Fung has been certified as a Project Management Professional by the Project
Management Institute. He is a certified financial planner certified by the
Institute of Financial Planners of Hong Kong and a certified financial planner of
The Chinese Institute of Certified Financial Planners. Dr. Fung has experience of
more than 30 years in the continuing education and vocational training field.
Dr. Fung is currently a self-employed higher education development and quality

assurance consultant.

Mr. Li Long, aged 66, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director in September 2017. Mr. Li has over 30 years of experience in the
trading industry. Mr. Li has held managerial positions in various sizeable
corporations in the PRC from 1985 to 2013. He has mainly been responsible

for business development, marketing and financial management.

Mr. Wang Zhiwei, aged 56, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director in October 2016. Mr. Wang graduated from Taiyuan Institute of
Machinery (currently known as the North University of China) in 1990 with a
bachelor's degree in mechanical engineering. Mr. Wang has been qualified as
a senior engineer in electronic engineering in the PRC since December 2000.
Mr. Wang has over 18 years of experience in holding senior executive positions
in various corporations in the PRC with businesses involving e-commerce,
software development, coal and energy development and solar power. Mr.
Wang was an independent non-executive director of Interactive Entertainment
China Cultural Technology Investments Limited (currently known as “Hang
Tai Yue Group Holdings Limited”) (stock code: 08081), the shares of which
are listed on GEM, from 1 August 2016 to 13 August 2018. From January
2011 to April 2014, Mr. Wang was the vice president of a subsidiary of Jun
Yang Financial Holdings Limited (currently known as “Power Financial Group
Limited”) (stock code: 00397), the shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. From May 2014 to June 2016, Mr. Wang also
worked as the deputy general manager of China Demeter Investments Limited
(currently known as “China Demeter Financial Investments Limited”) (stock
code: 08120), the shares of which are listed on GEM, and participated in
seeking potential investment opportunities in different projects.
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Mr. Wong Kin Ning, aged 50, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in April 2021, Mr. Wong has over 22 years of management
experience in the electronic and mechanical engineering field. Mr. Wong is
currently holding a management position in a sizable company in Hong Kong.
He is mainly responsible for strategic planning, as well as project and operation

management.

Mr. Wong Shui Yeung, aged 53, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in February 2024. Mr. Wong is a fellow member of The Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a certified public accountant
(practising) registered with the Accounting and Financial Reporting Council
and holds a bachelor’s degree in business administration from Hong Kong
Baptist University. He has over 25 years of experience in accounting, auditing,
corporate finance, corporate investment and development, and company
secretarial practice. Mr. Wong has served as an independent non-executive
director of Alset International Limited (SGX: 40V) since June 2017, the shares
of which are listed on the Catalist Board of Singapore Stock Exchange, a
member of the board of directors of Alset Inc. (NASDAQ: AEIl) since November
2021, the shares of which are listed on NASDAQ, HWH International Inc.
(Nasdag: HWH) (formerly known as Alset Capital Acquisition Corp.) since
January 2022, the shares of which are listed on NASDAQ, Value Exchange
International Inc. (NYSE: VEIl) since April 2022, the shares of which are listed
on OTC markets and DSS, Inc. since July 2022, the shares of which are listed
on NYSE. He was an independent non-executive director of SMI Holdings
Group Limited from April 2017 to December 2020 and SMI Culture & Travel
Group Holdings Limited from December 2019 to November 2020, the listing
shares of which were formerly listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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Directors’ Report EE 2R S

The Board is pleased to present this directors’ report (“Directors’ Report”)
and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2023. All cross-references mentioned in this Directors’
Report form part of this Directors’ Report.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in money lending business in Hong Kong
through the provision of both secured and unsecured loans to its customers,
including individuals, corporations and foreign domestic workers. Details of the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 31 to the consolidated

financial statements.
RESULTS

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2023 and the state of
affairs of the Company and the Group as at 31 December 2023 are set out
in the consolidated financial statements from pages 83 to 155 of this annual
report.

DIVIDENDS

The Board did not recommend the payment of any final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2023.

The Company has adopted a dividend policy. The dividend policy aims at
enhancing transparency of the Company and facilitating the shareholders and
investors of the Company to make informed investment decisions relating to
the Company. As set out in the dividend policy, the payment and the amount
of any dividend depends on a number of factors, including but not limited to
the Group's financial performance and liquidity position, the general economic
conditions and other internal or external factors that may have an impact on
the business or financial performance and position of the Group.
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(continued &)

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group during the year ended 31 December
2023, an analysis of the Group’s performance using financial key performance
indicators, and an indication of likely future developments of the Group’s
business is provided in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” from pages 6 to 18 of this annual report. Description of matters that
are material for appreciation of the state of the Group's affairs can be found
throughout this annual report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s business operations and financial conditions may be affected by
risks and uncertainties pertaining to the Group’s businesses, which mainly
include the operational risks, financial risks, market risks and regulatory risks.

Operational risks are those relating to the Group's internal processes, including
but not limited to potential misconduct of employees and fraud, which
may bring significant adverse impact on the Group’s business operations
and reputation. Failures of information technology systems will result in
interruption of the loan operation of the Group and potential leakage of
confidential information. Operational risks may also result from emergencies
and unexpected events such as natural hazards. In view of such risks, relevant
operation policies and procedures have been adopted and are in place to
ensure that the daily operation of the Group is in compliance with the relevant
requirements of laws and regulations, such as the MLO and the SFO. Internal
reporting procedures have been established and when any suspected case
of employee misconduct and/or fraud arises, any staff can report directly
to the management. The staff handbook has also stipulated that employee
misconduct and fraud are prohibited. The Group places considerable value
on data security and data privacy. The computer systems are secured with
access controls, while maintenance and update are conducted regularly by
the information technology service providers. Anti-virus softwares have been
installed for all computers in the office of the Group.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Cont’d)

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Cont'd)

Financial risks include interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk in the
Group's normal course of business. Interest rate risk relates to the fluctuation
of interest rates of the interest-bearing lending and borrowing of the Group.
Credit risk relates to the ability or willingness of customers to meet their
contractual obligations whereas liquidity risk refers to the Group's ability in
maintaining sufficient fund to meet the liquidity requirements. The above
financial risks may affect the finance costs incurred, revenue generated as well
as impairment loss on loans receivables. Further discussion about the financial
risks is set out in section C of note 28 to the consolidated financial statements
from pages 142 to 151 of this annual report. For credit risk in respect of the
loan portfolio, the Group has developed and adopted a set of loan approval
procedures and credit policy. The Group strives to maintain sufficient cash and
adequate funding available from its shareholders and committed line(s) of
funding from financial institution(s) and other entities. To ensure the Group
maintains sufficient capital and credit lines to meet its liquidity requirements,
the cash flows projection of the Group is reviewed on a regular basis.

Market risks relate to the change in macroeconomic conditions and fluctuation
of market variables such as gross domestic product, exchange rates, equity
prices and property prices in Hong Kong. These risks may generally affect
market demands and the repayment abilities of customers, in particular the
customers of personal loans, corporate loans and mortgage loans, which may
lead to adverse impact on the Group's revenue. The Group will from time to
time fine-tune the Group’s business strategies, policies and procedures, in
particular the loan approval procedures, according to the market situation.

Regulatory risks may arise from potential default of the Group in compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact on the
Group's business and any future changes in the relevant laws and regulations.
Non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations may bring various
consequences to the Group, including but not limited to the revocation or
suspension of the money lenders licence and/or the imposition of penalties
on the Group resulting from the offence. The compliance committee of the
Company was established with the aim to ensure the strict compliance of the
Group with relevant laws, rules and regulations applicable to the Group. The
Company has also adopted a compliance manual which governs the Company's
compliance matters in relation to the MLO, SFO, the GEM Listing Rules as
well as other relevant regulations. More information about the compliance
committee of the Company is set out in the paragraph headed "“Compliance

Committee” in the CG Report from pages 29 to 31 of this annual report.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Cont’d)

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Cont'd)

Further discussion on the risk management and internal control of the
Company is set out in the section headed “Risk Management and Internal
Control” in the CG Report from pages 33 to 35 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is aware of its rising environmental responsibility to the community
and is committed to reducing the negative impacts on the environment caused
by the operation of its business and enhancing its influence among different
stakeholders. It also strives to maintain an environmental-friendly business

mechanism across its operation.

The Group treasures natural resources and encourages efficient use of
electricity, water and paper. Environmental-friendly workplace guidelines
are provided to employees to facilitate the creation of a green workplace.
Employees are encouraged to use both sides of paper, recycled paper, or
choosing “2 pages per sheet” printing mode when printing documents. Also,
the Group nurtures recycling habit of employees and over 1,880 kg of used
paper were recycled during the year under review. The Group also initiates to
reduce waste on festive occasions.

Further details of the Group’s environmental policies and performance are set
out in the section headed "“Environmental Sustainable Development” in the
environmental, social and governance report (“ESG Report”) from pages 60 to
66 of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The operations of the Group are based in Hong Kong and the Group itself is
listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange. In light of this, the Group upholds high
corporate governance standards and strives to ensure that its business practice
complies with all relevant laws and regulations in the jurisdiction. Reviews on
regulatory compliance of its business operation are conducted from time to
time. During the year under review and up to the date of this annual report,
the Group has been in compliance in all material respects with the relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on its money lending
business in Hong Kong which mainly include the GEM Listing Rules, the MLO
as well as the SFO.

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2023

EBOmE(E)
TERRETEERE (#

BRALBRBRERERANIEEZE — T mE
RAFRFEIBEISADEERRSE A [ERE R
RAEpEE] —f-

REBREEKRR

ARBECDERIPEEZNLERREM BB
WELPmEXBEEMELHRENERATZE
AEMEREERTRBNEROEE T8RS
REZEREFRFROFZHES

AEEPERAERIBBEREREN KR
Mok o AKEMESRMIRRIEBAEOES] A
REAESETIERR - AEEBEEBITHX
HRERARNER BRAKICER [FR2E ]
MENRIER - REFETIERREEREANEE
HREIBEFEANAFE,880A T EMKKS AR -
RE B TR IR 18 &R H R

BRAKREREBRRRERRAZE-FTHBHERA
FHMFEOREF66A ZIRE -HBEREARS ([I]R
B HERETARE N REAFERR] -

ETAERER ROAS

REEREELE BAEENEXMGEM LT
BERNI AEERAKSRENTEEBREN
REREEBERETREZRRMEBEBERR
ERBTHETAREBEENARERTN
EH-ROBFEARBERFRAY AEER
FAEBEXREHTE —HETHRAETENESR
BABEAZENHEBEZRNREZR T EBEGEM
EARA BB AR R E 5 RS R -



Directors’ Report S = 3 5 (continued #)

BUSINESS REVIEW (Cont’d)

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS (Cont'd)

The MLO provides for the control and regulation of money lenders and money
lending transactions, the licensing of persons carrying on business as money
lenders, and provides protection and relief against excessive interest rates
and extortionate stipulations in respect of loans. As a licenced money lender
in Hong Kong, the Group has to ensure strict compliance with the MLO. The
Group's money lending business is subject to licensing requirements. The
money lenders licence is granted by the licensing court and is renewable
annually subject to satisfaction of all licensing conditions. Any non-compliance
with the MLO and/or the licensing conditions may result in revocation or
suspension of the money lenders licence, imposition of fines and hindrance
for future renewal of the money lenders licence, which may have an adverse
impact on the Group’s money lending business.

For the year under review and up to the date of this annual report, there has been
no material breach or non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations
which have a material impact on the business and operations of the Group.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS
Employees

The fact that employees are crucial assets of the Group is of no doubt. The
Group strives to enhance employees’ loyalty and sense of belongings to the
Group through various policies and practice. It emphasises the importance
of labour diversity and equal opportunities in recruitment process. It also
provides staff with a caring, safe and healthy working environment. In order
to help cater for the continuous development of the employees, professional
trainings and self-development sponsorships are provided. The Group values
any feedback from employees and maintains open communication with them,
which contributes to a good and long-lasting relationship.

Further details about the Group's policies and relationship with its employees
are set out in the sub-section headed “Employment and Labour Practices”
under the section headed “Social Sustainable Development” in the ESG Report
from pages 66 to 75 of this annual report.

customers

Customer-oriented principle is adopted across the business operation of the
Group. Product mix (e.g. loan portfolio) and service quality are regarded as key
to good relationship with customers and are reviewed from time to time with
the aim to cater for target customers’ fast-changing needs and enhance their
satisfaction with the products and services of the Group. The Group also strives
to ensure that honest and comprehensive information about its products is
provided to customers so that they can make appropriate informed decision. In
addition, as a large amount of personal and confidential information is handled
and processed by staff in day-to-day operation, guidelines regarding security of
customers’ personal data privacy and avoidance of information leakage are in
place.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Cont’d)

KEY RELATIONSHIPS (Cont’'d)
Ccustomers (Cont'd)

During the year under review, the Group’s major customers sourced from
the money lending business. With a diversified customer base, the Group
did not rely on any of its major customers. During the year under review, the
revenue generated from the five largest customers of the Group in aggregate
accounted for 52.5% of the revenue and the revenue from our single largest
customer accounted for 24.1% of the revenue. The five largest customers were
related to the Group's money lending business and comprised one individual
and four corporations, all of which were third parties independent with the
Company and its connected persons. All of the five largest customers had
outstanding loan balances with the Group as at 31 December 2023.

During the year under review, the credit period of the loans granted to the
major customers was 2 years, which was negotiated on an arm’s length basis
with reference to the commercial practice and the Group's credit policy. The
management of the Group will closely monitor the loan portfolio, in particular
the loans to major customers, periodically and will continue to adopt risk
control and management strategies while broadening the customer base.

As far as the Directors are aware, neither the Directors, their close associates
nor any shareholders of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in
the five largest customers of the Group during the year under review.

Further details about the Group’s policies and relationship with its customers
are set out in the paragraphs headed “Products and Services Responsibility”
and “Data Privacy” under the sub-section headed "“Operating Practices” in the
ESG Report from pages 71 to 72 of this annual report.

Suppliers

Given that the Group is engaged in the finance industry which is office based,
it does not rely on any major suppliers for its business operation in general. The
Group's suppliers are mainly those who provide services supporting the daily office
operation of the Group such as cleaning service companies, office consumables
suppliers and so on. The Group therefore considers that the risk arising from
cooperation with suppliers is minimal, and is unlikely that the relationships with
these suppliers will bring significant impact on the business operation of the Group
as it is comparatively easy to seek alternative suppliers in the market.

Besides, guidelines were established and adopted to outline criteria to be
considered when selecting suppliers and vendors. Factors such as whether the
potential suppliers own shared values with the Group in terms of sustainable
development will be considered. During the year under review, the Group has
worked closely with its suppliers and maintained good relationship with them.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Cont’d)

KEY RELATIONSHIPS (Cont'd)
Suppliers (Cont’d)

Further details about the Group’s policies and relationship with its suppliers are
set out in the paragraphs headed “Supply Chain Management” under the sub-
section headed “Operating Practices” in the ESG Report on pages 70 to 71 of
this annual report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
year under review and the past four years is set out in the section headed
"Financial Summary” on page 156 of this annual report. The summary does
not form part of the audited consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year under
review are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreement was entered into by the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2023 or subsisted at the end of the year under review.

ISSUE OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has issued any shares or
debentures during the year under review.

RELIEF OF TAXATION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holdings of the Company’s securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws or the laws
in Bermuda which the Company would be obliged to offer new shares on a
pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the Group's property, plant and equipment during
the year under review are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group for the year under review
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 86 of
this annual report.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company for the year under review
are set out in section B of note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2023, the Company’s reserves available for distribution
to equity holders comprised the contributed surplus which amounted to
approximately HK$213.46 million (2022: HK$213.46 million).

DONATIONS AND SPONSORSHIPS

During the year under review, the Group made charitable and other donations
and sponsorships amounting to approximately HK$5,000 (2022: approximately
HK$19,800).

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Directors during the year under review were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Ho Yuen May May
Ms. Lai Szu Yu

Mr. Lui Cheuk Fung
Ms. Xie Si

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Choy Sze Chung Jojo (resigned on 30 November 2023)
Dr. Fung Kam Man

Mr. Li Long

Mr. Wang Zhiwei

Mr. Wong Kin Ning

Mr. Wong Shui Yeung (appointed on 2 February 2024)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

As at 31 December 2023, the Company had no senior management other than
the Directors.

Biographical information of the Directors are set out from pages 38 to 40 of
this annual report.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the
GEM Listing Rules and considers all the independent non-executive Directors to

be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the existing executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for a term of no more than three years and each of the
existing independent non-executive Directors was appointed for a term of two
years, all being subject to retirement, re-election and removal in accordance
with the Bye-laws.

No Director being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a
service contract which is not determinable by the Company within one year

without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

EMOLUMENT POLICY

A remuneration committee was set up for reviewing the Company's
remuneration policy and structure of the remuneration of all Directors and
senior management. The Company offers competitive remuneration packages
and constantly monitors the packages with reference to the Company’s
conditions and market situations. The remuneration package generally
includes fees or salaries, discretionary bonus, allowance and benefits and
so on. Emoluments payable to Directors are generally determined based
on the Group's operating results, individual performance and experience
of the Directors and comparable market practices. Details of the Directors’
emoluments are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company did not have a share option scheme as at 31 December 2023.
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EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND THE FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the five individuals with highest emoluments are
set out in section B of note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

COMPETING INTERESTS

During the year under review, none of the Directors and their respective close
associates had any business or interests in business which competes or may
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group or had
any other conflicts of interest with the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

No arrangement to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries is a party,
and whose objects are, or one of whose objects is, to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate was subsisted at the end of the year
under review or at any time during the year under review.

Also, no transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director
(including any person who at any time during the year under review was a
Director) or an entity connected with a Director had material interest (whether
directly or indirectly), was subsisted at the end of the year under review or at
any time during the year under review.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, the Directors shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they shall or may
incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or
about the execution of their duty. Such provisions were in force during the year
under review and remained in force as at the date of this annual report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the year under review, no contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or subsisted.
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Directors’ Report

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2023, none of the Directors and the chief executive of
the Company had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the required standard of dealings by Directors as
referred to in Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of the persons
(other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company) in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long Position:
Name Nature of interest
31 M

Beneficial owner

BEmEAA

Xiao Guoliang

HER

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any other person (other
than the Directors or the chief executive of the Company) who/which had any
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO as
at 31 December 2023.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company had not entered into
any connected transaction or continuing connected transaction which was
subject to reporting and annual review requirements under the GEM Listing

Rules.

Details of the related party transactions entered into by the Group are set
out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements and those related
party transactions did not constitute “connected transaction” or “continuing
connected transaction” (as the case may be) under Chapter 20 of the GEM

Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended
31 December 2023.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining statutory and
regulatory standard of corporate governance and strives to ensure that its
business practice complies with the relevant laws and regulations in the
jurisdiction. The Group is responsive to regulatory changes and will evaluate
the need to amend its existing policies and practice from time to time. Details
of the Group's corporate governance structure and practices are set out in the
CG Report from pages 19 to 37 of the annual report of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2023.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
share capital was held by the public as at the latest practicable date prior to
the issue of this annual report.

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2023

N

RAEXZREFERERS

BHEeE -T2 -_=F+-_F=+—HILFE KAQF
WET I ERBETGEM TR W ER R FEE
ERBRTNHER SRS BERERS -

AEEFTUNBEETRSFBHRGAPBREK
30  EZZMEHT X 5L N HBKGEM LT
RIE208 B TH [HERS IR FHEBRER S
(RBERME)

gﬁ‘ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ$ﬁﬁt$%

HEe T -+ _A=Z+—HBHIFE AQF
SEFMHBEARMEREE HEXBEL AR T
ZAER ETES -

EXER

ARBBOIREBREFSKEHNCEES &
BEREEKERETAERAMAMBEERE
Mo AEEYHEEFANESEL A RO E I
FrEFEREEEEIBARERER AEH
TEEREBRERNFBRREARAEEZEZ
CEF+ AT BLEFEMNFREI19E37E

CREARE -
RARBERE
R BAE R 2 R EERAT RS READ

AARARZERSENERNREBEESEAA AR
AEBTRABEEREL25%IHARIEH



Directors’ Report S & R 5 (continued i)

AUDITORS

The Audited Financial Statements have been audited by Elite Partners CPA
Limited (“Elite Partners”).

During the year under review, Elite Partners was re-appointed as the auditors
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2023 by the shareholders at
the AGM held on 21 June 2023. Elite Partners will retire and, being eligible,
offer itself for re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM. A resolution to re-
appoint Elite Partners and to authorize the Directors to fix its remuneration will
be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Lui Cheuk Fung
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 26 March 2024
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Pursuant to the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide ("ESG
Guide") set out in Appendix 20 to the GEM Listing Rules, the Board is pleased
to present this Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG") Report for the
year ended 31 December 2023. This ESG Report highlights the initiatives and
efforts of the Company and the entity which is key to the operation of the
i.e. First Credit Limited,
environmental sustainable development and social sustainable development in

Group in terms of revenue, in the commitment to

the course of their principal business of money lending.

REPORTING PRINCIPLES

The Group adopts the principle of materiality in the ESG reporting by
conducting stakeholder engagement on a regular basis to understand the key
ESG issues that are important to the business of the Group. For the sake of
materiality principle stated in the ESG Guide, aspects and issues that are not
relevant or material to the Group are excluded from this ESG Report. All the
key ESG issues and key performance indicators (“KPIs”) are reported in the
ESG Report according to recommendations of the ESG Guide. The Group has
complied with the “comply or explain” provisions set out in the ESG Guide for
the year ended 31 December 2023. Please refer to the section of “Stakeholder
Engagement and Materiality Assessment” for detailed information of the
process adopted for selection of material ESG factors and the stakeholder

engagement.

In preparation of relevant specific KPIs, quantitative approach is adopted
for the information in the ESG Report of the Group. Sufficient description
or reference to the standards adopted have been disclosed under relevant
sections of the ESG Report. KPIs that need to be revealed compulsorily as
required by the "ESG Reporting Guide” were all addressed in the sections
headed "Environmental Sustainable Development” and “Social Sustainable
Development” of this report. Apart from complying with the reporting
“ESG Reporting Guide”,

on our compliance with relevant laws and regulations. This document is

principles of the this report has made illustrations
prepared in both English and Chinese versions and have been uploaded onto
the Company’s website at http://www.fcfg.com.hk and the Stock Exchange’s
website at http://www.hkexnews.hk.

Where feasible, the Group makes records and estimates for quantitative
information. To ensure a comprehensive understanding of the Group’s
sustainability performance, the environmental performance relative to various
quantitative KPIs with comparison to 2022 figures, are disclosed in each
corresponding section. Information on the standards, methodologies and/or

calculation references are stated wherever appropriate.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report I8 Tt k&6

The Group uses its best endeavours to ensure consistency in the use of
methods or KPIs in achieving a meaningful comparison. There is no change to
the methods or KPIs used in this ESG Report as compared with those of the
previous year.

REPORTING SCOPE

This ESG Report primarily focuses on the sustainability performance of the
Group's business activities in Hong Kong, which involve one office in Sheung
Wan and one warehouse in Kwun Tong as they represent the principal
operations of the Group's business activities in Hong Kong. With the aim of
augmenting the accuracy and transparency of the disclosure in this ESG Report,
the environmental and social KPIs collected and disclosed in this ESG Report
reflect all operations in Hong Kong, unless stated otherwise.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND
MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The Group conducts stakeholder engagement for evaluation of the materiality
and importance in ESG.

The Group acknowledges the importance of intelligence gained from the
stakeholders’ insights, inquiries and continuous interest in the Group’s business
activities. The Group has identified key stakeholders that are important to its
business and established various channels for communication with them. The
following table provides an overview of the Group’s key stakeholders including
government and regulatory authorities, shareholders and investors, professional
parties, senior management and Board of Directors, employees, customers,
suppliers and non-governmental organizations, media and communities and
the various platforms and methods of communication used to contact with,
listen and respond to the key stakeholders.
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Stakeholder Category
Fein EEHR

Expectations and Concerns

HEMEE

St
=

BE/0F

S

continued &)

Methods of Communication

BEHN

Government and regulatory o Compliance operation o Rules and guidelines published by
authorities ° Risk management regulatory authorities, including the
o Payment of tax Stock Exchange and the SFC
o Anti-corruption o Reports of suspicious activities to
° Anti-money laundering Joint Financial Intelligence Unit (if
applicable)
R e BB e . EREE . B EE SR RER MY
. [=\fg & 12 A K 45 5l
. S EIE TR . S M EBERA (HER) RS
. k&S COEED
o FTEEE
Shareholders and investors o Compliance operation o Annual general meeting
o Risk management o Announcements and circulars
° Business performance o Financial reports
o Email or mail
BRRIEEH o EREE J BERBERE
o [\ B & 32 o NE KB
. REXRR J MIERE
. TIPSR EL
Professional parties o Compliance operation o Meetings
° Anti-corruption ° Seminars
o Risk management . Email or mail
HEAL . BREE . G
o R&EB . a5 FE
o [B\ % B B2 . BRI
Senior management and Board of ° Compliance operation o Regular management meetings
Directors ° Risk management o Board and Board committee meetings
o Products and services quality o Financial reports
EREBRERESS . BREE J THEBRESH
. [2\fz & I J BEEgREFLZECEE
. EmkREEE . M HE
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Stakeholder Category Expectations and Concerns Methods of Communication
RHirEER B2 R BEAN
Employees o Health and safety o Regular meetings and management
o Employee development and training communication
o Data privacy o Job performance evaluation
o Products and service quality o Email
° Compliance operation
B8 . fEREZ S . THEZERERERR
. & B 3R RIET . THERBFIA
. AHRE . B
. EmkREES
. BREE
Customers . Products and service quality o Service hotline
° Data privacy o Email or mail
TP o EmkREES . R TG BAR
o BRALE . BE SR EL
Suppliers o Fair and open procurement o Service hotline
. Email or mail
e o NS SUNEEPS: . ARTG 2VAR
. B REL
Non-governmental organizations, ° Community service o ESG reports
media and communities ° Community investment projects
o Charity
JEMAE A - R Rt [: . 1 AR 7% . RE e RERME
. HRIREIER
. BE

The Group has always been committed to maintaining a strong relationship
with its stakeholders, working towards the goal of sustainable development.
Stakeholder engagement is a key part of management’s strategy to manage
and report on issues that are most relevant to the stakeholders and the Group's
business.

The Group has evaluated the materiality and importance in ESG aspects
through the following steps:

1. Identification: Benchmark the disclosure common practices on ESG topics
of companies in the money lending industry, 14 highly relevant topics
have been identified.

2. Assessment: Combining the analysis of peer benchmarking and
stakeholder survey, a list of ESG issues of varying materiality levels was
consolidated.

3. Review: Results of the materiality survey were analysed and presented as
a materiality matrix. Stakeholders’ concerns were reviewed and discussed
by the management, and the identified material topics are disclosed in
this ESG Report.
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The following matrix is a summary of the Group’s material ESG issues:

2023

BeE:

Materiality Matrix

NTEEAAEEEZRE HERER

High & —%— =
—_—<— fﬁ Egﬁ%ﬁl@ Anti-corruption
%) RES
z
8 Compliance with laws | /
E and regulations ?
e WPERRER Data Privacy
2 ERFLRE Corporate
§ Govemance
= EER
g
ﬁ il ERES Services Quality
B g’ Caring Workplace ./ EmREHEE
2w FRBAE N TS
wi
o X
6' X Supply Chain Management
z ﬁ GHREREEI [
X fi
E Eal Professional Development
z TR
o & Waste Management
y* Community | ® mRIEE
E yestment Use of Resources
=2 HERE o
z Emission Control AREA
w PERIES)
[e]
_
g \ Climate Change Mitigation
=] and Adaptation
REREEREE
Low 1 High &

LEVEL OF SIGNIFICANCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL IMPACTS

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE EJ& %1

Key Subsidiaries/
Departments

FEMBAF A
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report I8 Tt k&6

The Board has a critical role in overseeing the ESG-related issues by exercising
its risk-related oversight after taking into account the materiality of different
ESG risks. This oversight is strategic and closely aligned with the Group’s
business model and operations.

For the year under review, the Board effectively oversees risks posed by ESG
issues throughout the risk evaluation, prioritization and management processes.
The Board evaluates and determines the nature and extent of the ESG-related
risks that are relevant and material in achieving the Group’s strategic objectives
based on the results/findings of the materiality assessment. Various measures
and policies have been established and implemented to manage and monitor
the risks related to the ESG matters. The Board oversees the implementation
of the ESG measures and monitors the ESG-related issues through the risk
management system during the annual review.

An ESG workforce was established to introduce and facilitate implementation
of ESG-related policies and measures. It ensures that employees are
well-informed of any introductions of or amendments to the ESG-related
policies and measures. It also takes the major role of monitoring the ESG
performance and ensuring the effective implementation of the ESG-related

policies and measures.

Annual review is conducted regarding the ESG commitment and performance
of the Group based on the relevant external and internal information
gathered. Based on the findings in its annual review, the ESG workforce
makes recommendations and suggestions to the compliance committee of
the Board, which conducts review and reports findings and suggestions to the
Board correspondingly. The Board then conducts overall review with the aim to
enhance ESG mechanism and policies of the Group.
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ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

EMISSIONS CONTROL

The Group understands the importance of environmental protection and is
committed to minimising air pollutant and greenhouse gas (“GHG") emission
as it knows that the global warming issue should never be overlooked.

For calculating GHG emissions, SME Carbon Audit Toolkit (“Toolkit"), designed
by the University of Hong Kong and City University of Hong Kong, is used by
the Group. Considering the scale of the Group’s business, the emission factors
of the Toolkit are considered suitable and are adopted in calculating the GHG
emissions of the Group that are disclosed in this ESG Report. Even though
the Toolkit was established in 2010, the Group considers that the potential
inaccuracies due to time factor will only have a minor influence on the results.
Apart from the Toolkit, other external resources obtained from relevant
institutions such as CLP Power Hong Kong Limited (“CLP"”) and Hong Kong
Electric Company Limited (“HK Electric”) and those extracted from the IPCC
Sixth Assessment Report 2016 (AR6) are also adopted in calculating the GHG
emissions of the Group. Considering the business nature of the Group, GHG
emissions stated in this ESG Report in relation to the respective consumption
by the key subsidiaries and offices were calculated in the unit of kilogram of
carbon dioxide in equivalent (kg CO; eqg-"), or in kilogram (“kg").

The Group’s principal business was money lending. The cause of direct
emissions in the Group's operation was mainly from the use of vehicles and
vessel which run on petrol and diesel. The decrease in air pollutant emission
was attributable to the decrease in the usage of motor vehicles for business
purposes.

The approximate amount of direct emission from the Group was as follows:
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TERRAREEZENBE:

Nitrogen oxides (“NO") ALty ([NOLI)
Sulphur oxides ("$0,") ma by ([S0.])
Particulate matter (“PM") FER ([PM 1)

5.32 9.59
0.10 0.18
0.39 0.71

Apart from direct emissions, the Group’s operation also leads to energy indirect
emissions of GHG caused by the use of electricity, such as lighting and air-
conditioning system, and other indirect emissions of GHG caused by waste
disposal, water consumption and public transportation of staff.
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GHG EMISSIONS

The approximate amount of GHG emissions from the Group was as follows:

Greenhouse gas emissions
Scope 1 emission

Scope 2 emission

Scope 3 emission

Total GHG emissions (Scope 1+2+3)

Intensity (Scope 1+2+3)

Public Transportation of staff

Total non-hazardous waste produced

General Waste (Disposed)
- Total

- Intensity

BERBHER
HE R

EE2H M

BE3H

REREHREE (BE1+243)

78 (8E1+2+3)

FEEHERRNLE

—REEN(CRE)
—£8

-1

ERBEHR

TERRAEENR

kg CO; eg-
AT ZEIHEE

kg CO; eg-
ATZElRER

kg CO; eg-
AFZ&EIHESR

kg CO, eq-
ARZEItHEER

kg CO, eq-/sq.feet
AFZENBEE/THR

kg CO, eg-
AFZElREE

kg CO, eg-

MR- ECBEE

kg CO; eq-/sq.feet
A& ERTAR

EREFREE:

30,138

24,860

54,998

9.28

288

270

Note 1: GHG included combustion of fuels controlled by the Group, carbon dioxide, — FMzE1 @ JBEREBRIEANEBESI O REREEEHRE

methane and nitrous oxide etc. For easy understanding, the amount of GHG
emissions stated in this table was calculated in the unit of kg CO, eg-produced.

The global warming potential values for methane and nitrous oxide were 28 and

265 respectively.
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Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

Note 5:

Energy indirect emissions by the Group were mainly from electricity consumption.
The latest emission factor of CLP was extracted from the CLP's sustainable report
of 2023, and the latest emission factor of HK Electric was extracted from the
carbon calculator of HK Electric in calculating the data of 2022. The emission
factors were 0.54 kg CO, per unit for the electricity supplied by CLP and 0.68 kg
CO; per unit for electricity supplied by HK Electric.

The Toolkit was used to calculate the data of other indirect emissions of GHG by
the Group.

The Total GHG emissions of the Group, had decreased by approximately 37%
compared with last year, which was mainly attributable to the Group’s disposal of
all the motor vehicles and vessel during the year.

Non-hazardous waste disposal of the Group mainly comprised general office
waste. Owing to practical reasons, the data of non-hazardous waste disposal
was estimated figures. The data of 2022 and 2023 were estimated by taking a
daily average volume of non-hazardous waste disposal as a sample. The total
non-hazardous waste disposal, was significantly decreased from approximately
270 kg CO; eqg-for the year ended 31 December 2022 to approximately 240 kg
CO; eqg-for the year ended 31 December 2023. The intensity of non-hazardous
waste generated by the Group were 0.05 kg/sq. ft. for the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2023.

During the year under review, the total GHG emissions had decreased by

approximately 37% as compared to the corresponding period in 2022.
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The emission reduction measures were as follows:

o encourage employees to turn off the engine when the vehicle is not in
use;
J remind employees to plan routes ahead of time to reduce route

repetition and optimize fuel consumption;

o actively adopt energy conservation measures which are described in the
section headed “Use of Resources” below;

o avoid peak hour traffic; and

o encourage staff to use public transport instead of private vehicle.

WASTE DISPOSAL AND RECYCLING

As the principal business of the Group was office-based, no hazardous
waste as defined in the “Basel Convention on the Control of Transboundary
Movements of Hazardous Wastes and their Disposal, 1989" was produced
during the year under review. The Group implemented policies to enhance
employees’ awareness of waste separation and recycling relevant waste. For
the year ended 31 December 2023, the weight of used paper collected for
recycling was 1,880 kg.

In the future, the Group will continue its efforts to handle non-hazardous
waste with the aim of maintaining or reducing the total generation of such
waste. Actions to reduce wastes are as follows:

o encourage the use of electronic scanning or electronic fax to reduce
photocopying;

o introduce collection and recycling of e-waste such as old computers or
other office equipment; and

o Re-use office consumables such as printing paper and manila envelopes.

USE OF RESOURCES

The Group treasures natural resources as a gift from nature, and it encourages
efficient use of resources to avoid over-consumption. Employees are
encouraged to turn off lights and electronic appliances that are not in use after
business hours. Reminder tags are placed in the office to remind employees to
adjust thermostats at a reasonable room temperature. Office consumables such
as light bulbs and stationery are replaced or purchased only when necessary in

order to avoid wastage.
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The Group's business is office-based, and it merely involves regular daily water
consumption and discharge. No issue arises in sourcing water that is fit for
the purpose of the Group's operation as the water supply is managed by the
building management office. Employees are reminded to turn off the water
faucet when it is not in use. Reminder tags of water conservation are placed
at a conspicuous position near the sinks to remind employees to save water.
Besides, in order to promote the habit of conservation of natural resources,
reminder tags are placed in the office’s washrooms to encourage the staff to
conserve toilet paper and tissues.

As the Group is not engaged in the manufacturing business, its operation does
not involve the use of packaging materials and labelling.

The volume and the intensity of energy and water consumption by the Group
during the year under review, together with the comparative figures for the
year ended 31 December 2022 were as follows. Given that the principal
business of the Group was office-based, sq. ft. is used as the unit in calculating

the intensity of electricity and water consumption:

AEBNEBRBAZTET LR FRAFERAK
Ko B R o AR S B R SRBRGE B Y 258 WY KR 70 H 3E
EEAME ARAKEERDIHAEEEREE K
SEIRIEEE L AKEER G E BN - 7K
UL E R T IRA REKERNRERHIALR
BREMAOMK LI BREEEARERNE
B RAEATHERARERE ZBE TN
MR

HRAEBET I RFEEER WEEETHIR
BEMBEBEHROER -

ARBEROEFEANEEREKEMNTE &
ABE-_Z-_—"F+-_A=+—"RLFENHLR
HFNMT - ERAEEN T EZEBENDEHET
Btk 77 RAZ AT EFEE MK E R B AL

2023
Unit  Unit/sq. feet
FSEAIR
HE
Direct energy - Petrol BEER— M
(kilowatt-hour ("kWh") ("000F FL /)N B
in '000s) ([FRE])) 1 65,742 12.48 70,091 11.83
Indirect energy — Electricity BEIR-8 71
(KWh in "000s) ('000F FLFF ) 27,554 5.23 35,072 5.91
Water Consumption N 2 N/A A N/A 738
Total: st 93,296 17.71 105,163 17.74
Note 1: The relevant conversion factors are referenced from the International Energy  [ffsF1 : MHEAEBREEHH2EHBERE SIS -
Agency.
Note 2: Since the Group operates in leased office premises, the data of its water  [ffs2: ARNAEBEEMENRAZTANEL HAEEE

consumption was not available to the Group.

In the following year, the Group is committed to initiating further measures
addressing energy consumption, with the aim to maintain or reduce the
intensity of energy consumption. The respective measures are as follows:
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Electricity

o replace broken electronic devices and electric appliances with new
models having energy efficiency label;

o regularly clean lamps or light bulbs to ensure luminous efficiency and
effective illumination;

o keep doors, windows, and entrances closed to prevent loss of air
conditioning in the office;

o assure the cooling effect of air conditioning equipment by proper
maintenance;

. keep air-conditioning at 25C;
o promoting the use of energy-saving lighting system such as LED; and
o remind employees to turn off the office electronic appliances before get

off from work.

Petrol

The Group's use of petrol was mainly attributable to our vehicles and use
of diesel was mainly to our vessel, and we allocated the use of high-grade
petrol and diesel to reduce the impact on the environment. Meanwhile, we
encourage employee to use public transportation as much as possible to
reduce greenhouse gas emissions.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND NATURAL RESOURCES

Being a financial institution, most of the Group’s business operations involve
document printing. No significant impacts are made on the environment
and natural resources resulting from the Group's operation except from the
printing of loan documents and internal documents, which can result in the
consumption of a large amount of printing papers. The Group takes the
following steps to minimise the use of paper:

o promoting the use of double-sided printing and recycling non-
confidential used paper;

o reminder tags are placed in office to encourage employees to use
double-sided printing function, recycled paper; or choose “2 pages per
sheet” printing function; and

o maximize usage of e-mails, internal networks and scanners to send or

store documents electronically.
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To enhance environmental awareness of the staff not just within the office, but
also in everyday life, the Group also provided some environmental-friendly tips
to its employees.

Climate Change

As the principal business of the Group is office-based, there are no significant
climate-related issues which have impacted or which may impact the Group. In
view of the possible natural disasters or adverse weathers which might affect
the Group's operation, a business contingency plan is in place to define the
recovery process for restoring the critical business functions of the Group and
minimising the loss of revenue, customers or data. The staff handbook of the
Group also stipulates the work arrangements for office in the event of typhoon

or rainstorms.

The Group conducts year to year comparison for the data on its GHG emission,
the use of resources, including electricity consumption, and discharges of
non-hazardous solid waste to quantify the Group’s achievements in terms
of its measures on emission and waste reduction and initiatives on efficient
use of resources. The management considers that the overall results of the
environmental protection measures are satisfactory, and the Group will
continue to make contributions to environmental protection.

SOCIAL SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES
Employment

Employees are crucial assets of the Group. A caring workplace helps enhance
employees’ sense of belonging. Comprehensive guidelines and procedures
regarding human resources, including but not limited to recruitment, working
hours, rest periods as well as compensation are established. Guidelines on
recruitment, promotion and staff appraisals are set forth in the Recruitment
Policy. Employees who commit misconducts or violate company rules may
be dismissed in accordance with the Group’s dismissal policy. To encourage
retention and foster a sense of belonging, a remuneration policy and structure
is formulated to govern the remuneration package of all management and staff
of the Group. In addition to maternity leave, paternity leave and condolence
leave, employees are entitled to birthday leave which shows the Group’s
emphasis on its relationships with employees. Other benefits and welfare are
documented in the Group's Staff Handbook. To promote a breastfeeding-
friendly working environment, the Group has also joined the “Say Yes to
Breastfeeding” campaign launched by UNICEF HK in collaboration with the
Food and Health Bureau of the Department of Health.
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During the year under review, the Group had a total of 12 full-time employees REBEFERN  AEBEEG1N2E22BEE  RAR
and the turnover rate was 85.1%. The following tables demonstrate the  A85.1% A FTEIRBRLEEER - FE4HR K&
distribution of employees and turnover by gender, age group and geographical @B D HEE DB R ML X

region:

Female

g

~ Employee diversity -EE%KI

~ Employee turnover rate -EERAE % 53 381

Age

under 30 30-50 Above 50
F#

30T 30E505% 505 E

~ Employee diversity -EE%KI

~ Employee turnover rate -EERAE % 0 25.6 0

Outside

Hong Kong Hong Kong
FE FEUS

- Employee diversity -REZKIL

— Employee turnover rate —EERAE % 18.9 0.0

F-ERAEAEEARQF —T_=FFH§
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Safe and Healthy Working Environment

The Group strives to create a safe working environment as recommended
by the Occupational Safety and Health Council in Hong Kong. For instance,
computer workstations for employees are designed in a way that will help
alleviate health problems like upper limb pains and discomfort resulting
from inappropriate postures. The Group is committed to creating a
working environment free of discrimination and harassment, which can
reduce employees’ work stress. The Group prohibits discrimination in any
circumstances. Reporting channel is also provided to staff who feels being
treated unfairly and appropriate actions will be taken to address such issues if
they arise. Further, a business contingency plan is in place to protect the Group
from possible threats and risks caused by emergent situation or disaster in

order to maintain the safety of employees in such situations.

Given the nature of the Group’s money lending business, there was no
significant risk relating to employees’ health and safety. During the year under
review, there were neither work-related fatalities nor any lost workdays due to
work injury. The Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with
the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Chapter 509 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) and other health and safety-related laws and regulations which
have a significant impact on the Group.

Development and Training

The Group adopted a Staff Training and Development Policy with the aims to
improve and enhance its competitiveness in the financial market as high-quality
staff training forms the foundation for the provision of superior financial
services to the customers. Staff training (including the distribution of training
materials) is provided regularly on any updates or information, in particular,
in relation to the money lending industry with reference to the fast-changing
market environment, the business objectives of the Group and the relevant
requirements of the regulatory bodies. A self-development sponsorship policy
is also in place to encourage continuous learning and development of staff by
providing financial supports to nurture talents and explore various potentials of
staff.

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2023

-

E\% continued #&)

ZEMERNTIFRE

AEEHNEBNARERERERRERAESR
E"]?%IVF%%"W?ZDWEEE@‘ il TIERF R
A EELEB PRSI R ERBENTES
BERE AEEBNLETEARTRENT
FRE - GREREN TIERE Y - AEB TR L
EEMBERTHERTRA - EETRZITQF
5 AEETERMERRE ANELILES
/R AEE B ERIEETHRRILEEE - b5
AEBEEHE -—EXBRESE UREREE
REREZMNL LI BNEERE KAR
wmELRBELTRERENZ 2

RAEBEXEBUEERMEER EENITIEF
ﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁ&ﬁi@%ﬁ@iﬁﬂﬁﬁomﬁﬁﬁi
E-AEEMERIRCES TERIBMEX
TR - AEEITNEEAREEER (BREXL
ERREGDN) (FEEDES098) K H M {#5E
B2 REERERAGHAREELSTRR
BENEH-

R R IE

AEBECHEMNETHEIRBEREE FLHER
RAERSBMMISHFESE N BIELHE THEI
AREFPREEUHSRBRENER - BETHI (B
BBl e REREEZNTIHERE K
E@E’\J%WETa—f&ﬁt”:*éﬁﬂ'ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁi'mﬁmm

HEERBETENEMNERHRALER - KEE
MEGEBRECEBBR FRIBHMBZIE
SEEIRBELEEREE BURBEEATRER
BETIMEZEER-



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (215« Tt & R E B IR continued #)

The Group provides continuous professional trainings to employees to ensure
that they are equipped with updated knowledge and skills to perform their
duties. Staff training is conducted every year to ensure that employees are
well-informed of the policies and procedures of the Group. Besides, staff
trainings in relation to the MLO, AML, counter-terrorist financing (“CTF") and
anti-corruption were conducted during the year under review. Details regarding
the staff trainings on AML, CTF and anti-corruption are set out in the sub-

AEBEREERMBESERI UERREREAR
BRAMMERERETRE - SFERTETE
g UREEXDBERASEREREF-
BESN BRIREAGE TREE RHDTES
E5 (B TELER ) URRESHNETHE
I FREEFRERIT-ARITEAZRREMN D T
BEoEEARREFHNE THIZFE #HRA

paragraph headed “Anti-corruption, AML and CTF” in the section headed

"Operating Practices” in this ESG Report.

The following table demonstrate the breakdown of employees trained and

average training hours by gender and employee category during the year under

review:

RE HehEARS [2EEY] —HIRES

TEEE R

TRERAEBEFEARMER K EB RS 5

X2 B BAR K T 1 5 S B 8

Average training hours by employee category

RESENE SN THRIN K

- Executive Directors and Senior Management ~ —#{TEHEREREEAB (hours) (/)\&5)
- Management ~-EBAE (hours) (/]\B%)
- General Staff -——HRET (hours) (/]\B%)

Average training hours by gender
- Male

- Female

Employees trained by employee category

RIERI B2 0 TR SR
-1

-t

RESENESNZIIER

(hours) (/)\B)
(hours) (/)\B)

~ Executive Directors and Senior Management ~ —#{TEHERAREEAR %
- Management -EEAE %
— General Staff -—REIL %
Employees trained by gender BRI NRIES

- Male -5 %
- Female — i %

DFELEREINOIRA-

2023 2022
—g-= k- et 5
1.25 422
10.50 483
1.25 2.57
4.25 3.24
1.80 372
100 100
100 100
100 74
100 77
100 100
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Labour Standard

The Group emphasises the importance of labour diversity and equal
opportunities in recruitment and promotion matters. Candidates with different
qualifications and experiences are welcome in order to diversify the labour
base. The recruitment policy of the Group sets out a transparent mechanism
and practice for recruitment in compliance with the Employment Ordinance
(Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and other relevant laws and
regulations which have a significant impact on the Group in relation to child
and forced labour prevention, recruitment and promotion, equal opportunity
and anti-discrimination. It also states clearly that criteria such as age, gender,
marital status, nationality, race, sexual orientation, pregnancy, physical
and mental disabilities and religious belief should not be considered in the
candidates screening process so as to ensure equal treatment to all applicants.
Child and forced labour are strictly prohibited in the Group. To avoid illegal
employment of child and forced labour, each of the job applicants is required
to fill in an employment application form, in which personal data necessary for
ensuring that the applicant is over the statutory minimum age for employment
is collected. Personal information, such as the number of identity card, is also

collected for the sake of identity verification.

During 2023, no complaints were received regarding child or forced labour,
unfair treatment or discrimination during the recruitment and promotion
process. The Group is also not aware of any material non-compliance with
the Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and other
child and forced labour related laws and regulations which have a significant
impact on the Group.

OPERATING PRACTICES
Supply Chain Management

Given the business of the Group as a financial services provider, suppliers of
the Group are mainly service providers who provide services supporting the
daily office operation of the Group. The Group adopted a Vendor Selection
Guideline. During the supplier engagement and tender process, our evaluation
criteria include factors such as product and services quality, business operation
standards, delivery capabilities and price with respect to competitive fairness,
in general we will invite two or more parties to submit their quotation under
normal circumstances for new supplier engagement. The Group also works
with suppliers that supply office consumable products, and those that provide
printing and cleaning service. During 2023, the Group had around 52 suppliers,
and all of them are from Hong Kong.
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In order to build up cooperative relationships with different suppliers in a
socially responsible manner, guidelines are established and adopted to outline
the criteria to be considered when selecting suppliers and vendors with an
aim to establish a sustainable relationship with suppliers and to safeguard
the welfare of the workers, protect the community and the environment. The
criteria include the protection of workers’ human rights, safety and health by
the suppliers and so on. The Group's employees are required to follow the
guidelines when selecting suppliers and the Group will periodically review their
implementation.

Green Procurement

To promote green procurement practices in our operations, we have taken the
following actions:

1. Use LED fluorescent tubes;

2. Durable and washable wallpaper;

3. Carpets and floors with a material recycling rate of 70%; and
4. Use recyclable photocopier.

The Group evaluates and monitors the ESG risks along the supply chain in
accordance with the risk management policy of the Group. Details of the risk
management system are set out in the section headed “Risk Management and
Internal Control” in the CG Report of the Company set out from pages 33
to 35 of the annual report of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2023. During 2023, the risk of suppliers bringing significant negative impacts
(whether actual or contingent) on the Group’s business is negligible, and the
Group was not aware of any material non-compliance incidents of suppliers
regarding environmental and labour protections.

Products and Services Responsibility

The Group has always striven to provide diversified financial solutions to
customers. Honest and comprehensive information about the products is
provided to customers with the aim to help them make appropriate informed
decisions. In addition, with its customer-oriented principle, the Group
emphasises quality services to raise customers’ satisfaction. Members of staff
are encouraged to give prompt response and provide the best assistance to

customers.

The Group ensures the products and services provided are in compliance
with applicable laws, regulations and relevant guidelines, proper approval
procedures and relevant risk assessment would be conducted before launching
any new products. The money laundering and terrorist financing risks of all
existing products would be reviewed regularly as an ongoing monitoring

control of the product risk.
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The Group strives to provide quality financial services to the customers and
values customers’ needs. Customers who wish to make any inquiries, feedback,
recommendation or complaints may refer to the contact details set out in the
section headed “Dialogue and Communication” in this ESG Report. During
2023, the Group had not received any service-related complaints.

The Group registered its trademark with The Trade Marks Registry under
the Intellectual Property Department in 2013 and renewed in 2023 to enjoy
exclusive right to use the trademark during its provision of financial services to
customers and in the Group'’s publications and advertising materials.

During the year under review, no material breach or non-compliance with
relevant laws and regulations regarding the business and operations of the
Group was found. In particular, the Group adhered to the applicable laws
regulating its principal business of money lending i.e., MLO. In respect of
advertising, the Group complied with the latest additional licensing conditions
imposed on money lenders and was not aware of any non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact on the Group

relating to advertising during 2023.

Data Privacy

The Group values security and protection of customers’ privacy and personal
data. Information provided by customers is handled with due care and in
accordance with the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Chapter 486 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) (“PDPO") and other relevant laws and regulations.
Guidelines regarding the handling of confidential information are provided
to staff to enhance information security in business operations and across
departments. Emails are encrypted and passwords are added to attachments
when necessary in order to preserve the confidentiality of material information.
Statement for the collection of personal data is provided to customers before
the collection of personal data. A data protection officer is appointed by the
Group to oversee the Group's compliance with the PDPO.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group was not aware of
any material non-compliance with the PDPO and other relevant laws and
regulations which have a significant impact on the Group relating to privacy

matters.

The customers can contact the data protection officer of the Group via email to
contact@firstcredit.com.hk if they have any complaints or concerns in relation
to the Group's compliance with the PDPO and/or any other relevant laws and

regulations relating to personal data privacy.
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Anti-fraud and whistle-blowing policy

The Group has established an anti-fraud policy to detect and prevent
fraud within the Group. By implementing the fraud risk assessment, the
Group is able to dictate the frequency of risk assessment and apply relative
investigation procedures so as to minimize the fraud risk. The Group has also
implemented a whistle-blowing policy, which allows all staff and independent
third parties, including customers, suppliers and contractors, to report any
possible improprieties, misconducts, malpractices or irregularities in matters of
financial reporting, internal control or other matters to the Board or the Audit
Committee anonymously. The Group will handle the reports and complaints
with care and will treat the whistle-blower’s concerns fairly and properly. Any
person who is found to have victimized or retaliated against those who have
raised concerns under this policy will subject to disciplinary sanctions. There
was no legal case regarding corrupt practices brought against the Group or its
employees during the reporting period.

Anti-Corruption, AML and CTF

Engaging in the money lending business, the Group’s employees have to deal
with money transactions in the day-to-day business operation. Potential risks
regarding improper or dishonest handling of money by customers or employees
cannot be neglected. Guidelines in relation to anti-corruption and fraud and
a policy and procedure regarding AML and CTF (“AML and CTF Policy and
Procedure”) are formulated and stated to the staff.

The Group strives to achieve high standards of ethics in its business operations
and does not tolerate any corruptions and other behaviours violating work
ethics. The Group stipulates the code of conduct in the staff handbook
and encourages the staff to report any incident of soliciting and accepting

advantages.

As part of the loan approval process, the Group will carry out appropriate
customer due diligence procedures on a risk-based approach to assess the risk
of money laundering and terrorist financing. Details of the Group’s customer
due diligence measures are set out in the Company’s AML and CTF Policy and
Procedure. Besides, measures regarding monitoring and reporting of suspicious
cases are also implemented and maintained throughout the operation of the
Group. Any suspicious case of money laundering or terrorist financing which
comes to the staff's knowledge will be reported to the money laundering
reporting officer (“MLRO") of the Group immediately. Taking the relevant
information into account, MLRO will evaluate the suspicious case on a case-by-
case basis and will report to the Joint Financial Intelligence Unit of the Hong
Kong Government as soon as practicable if he considers it necessary. To ensure
that the existing AML and CTF systems are up-to-date, effective and able to
efficiently manage the potential money laundering and terrorist financing risks,
regular reviews will be conducted.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report R8Tt B R E B I continued #)

For the year under review, in order to fulfill the additional licensing condition
for money lenders to comply with the Guideline on Compliance of Anti-Money
Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing Requirements for Licensed Money
Lenders ("AML and CTF Guideline”) published by the Companies Registry, the
Company has enhanced its AML and CTF systems in accordance with the latest
AML and CTF Guideline. Staff trainings on AML and CTF were also conducted
during the year under review to update and familiarise the staff with the latest
AML and CTF measures and to provide an overview of the enhanced AML and
CTF systems of the Company. Reading materials in relation to business ethics
and anti-corruption were circulated to all staff, so as to enhance employees’
understanding on anti-bribery and anti-corruption.

Staff handbook of the Company sets out the code of conduct regarding
accepting and soliciting advantages. All members of the staff are required to
follow the code of conduct. A reporting mechanism is also established for staff
to report any non-compliance incidents in relation to bribery, corruption, fraud,

money laundering or terrorist financing.

No significant risks relating to improper or dishonest handling of money were
identified. The Group did not receive any whistle-blowing reports from its
employees during the year as well. There were also neither any confirmed
incidents or suspected incidents regarding bribery, corruption, fraud, money
laundering or terrorist financing against the laws of Hong Kong nor any legal
proceedings regarding corrupt practices brought against the Group or its
employees during the year under review. The Group was not aware of any non-
compliance with the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter 201 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) and other laws and regulations relating to bribery, corruption,
fraud, money laundering or terrorist financing which have a significant impact

on the Group during 2023.

COMMUNITY

Initiatives and efforts of social service organisations, should be recognised
and supported. The Group will also explore opportunities to cooperate with
different organisations that share the same values and principles with the
Group. The Group strives to raise employees’ awareness in terms of social
involvement and civic consciousness by putting in both monetary resources and
time. The Group also established the ESG Team. Employees are also encouraged
to participate in community enhancement events such as volunteering and
fundraising activities.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report IR1E  TE S R E B IR S5 continued &)

For the year under review, the community activities focusing on several areas of
contribution such as environmental concerns and health of the Group were as

REBEFE AEEZITNRTRERAEAE (WERE
REMZE) M RFSHIMT:

follows:
2023 Programme Organization
—g=-= EEN s
March Earth Hour 2023 World Wide Fund
=A 3R — /N FF2023 HRERAESS
May Smoke-free Sportswear Day 2023 Hong Kong Council on Smoking and Health
A 0% 3 AR 52023 BEREEEREES S
November Say Yes to Breastfeeding for 2023 UNICEF HK
+—A [20238 3 B BERE | JEEhAGH fEERERSAERBEEY
AWARDS 517

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group received the award of
Caring Company (2022/23) from The Hong Kong Council of Social Service
which recognizes the efforts paid by the Group on ESG.

DIALOGUE AND COMMUNICATION

The Group will continue to maintain open communication opportunities with
various stakeholders on ESG matters from time to time. The Group values
every feedback and recommendations from its stakeholders on ESG matters
in order to improve its existing ESG policies and practice. Stakeholders may
write directly to the Group's principal place of business in Hong Kong at
Room 1, 7/F, Yue Thai Commercial Building,128 Connaught Road Central,
Hong Kong or via email to enquiry@firstcredit.com.hk for any inquiries,
feedback and recommendation regarding ESG-related issues.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report & 11 #% & 6T 3R &

elite
~ partners

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued in Bermuda with limited
liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of First Credit Finance
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the "Group”) set out on pages 83 to 155, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,

including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2023,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the "HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our opinion.
KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional Judgement, was of
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. The matter was addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on the matter.
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KEY AUDIT MATTER (Cont’d)

Key Audit Matter
BB ER

FARESEE(E)

How our Audit Addressed the Key Audit Matter
EEME N EERREEIE

Impairment of loans receivables

(Refer to notes 19 and 28(C) to the consolidated financial
statements)

The measurement of expected credit loss (“ECL"”) requires
the application of significant judgements which include the
identification of exposures with a significant deterioration in
credit quality, and assumptions used in the ECL models, such as
the probabilities of default, loss given default, expected future
cash flows and forward-looking macroeconomic factors.

Due to the significance of loans receivables (representing
approximately 76% of total assets) and the corresponding
uncertainty inherent in such estimation of ECL allowance, we
considered this as a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures included the assessment of the
origination, segmentation, ongoing internal credit quality
assessments, recording and monitoring of loans receivables.

For collectively assessed ECL, we assessed the reasonableness
of the Group's ECL models, including the model input, model
design, model performance for significant loan portfolios.

We assessed the reasonableness of the Group’s criteria for
assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk
and so allowances for financial assets should be measured on a
lifetime ECL basis and the qualitative assessment.

We challenged whether historical experience is representative
of current circumstances and of the recent losses incurred in
the loan portfolios and assessed the reasonableness of forward-
looking adjustments. Where changes had been made in model
parameters and assumptions, we evaluated the appropriateness
of such changes.

We also assessed and tested the sensitivity of the credit loss
provisions to changes in modelling assumptions.

For a sample of exposures that was subject to an individual
impairment assessment, we reviewed the Group's assumptions
on the expected future cash flows, including assumptions in
respect of the value of realisable collateral based on available
market information.

We also assessed disclosures in the financial statements relating
to the Group’s exposure to credit risk.
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KEY AUDIT MATTER (Cont’d) HMEETEE (&)
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Independent Auditor’'s Report B 1T &2 Z B3R 5 «continued &

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the annual report, but does not include
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,

we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's

financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report B 17 &7 E BN R 5 continued &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion, solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section
90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of

internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report B 1T &2 Z B3R 5 «continued &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report B 17 &7 E BN R 5 continued &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

From the matter communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine the matter that was of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matter. We describe the matter in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably

be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor's
report is Mr. MAK, Kin Wang with Practising Certificate number P08114.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Level 23, YF Life Tower,
33 Lockhart Road,

Wan Chai, Hong Kong

26 March 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income {78 B3R A2 EWER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE-ZT-_="F+-_A=-+—HIEFE

Revenue L& 6 6,354,746 50,692,834
Other income EHAap g A 26,210 716,677
Other gains and losses, net E e g B F R 9 (4,527,097) (29,537,000)
1,853,859 21,872,511
Administrative expenses TERAX (10,119,274) (13,863,533)
Impairment loss on loans receivables EWE FUREEE 19, 28(c) (137,068,822) (43,143,818)
Impairment loss on interests receivables FEUH BORE 1B (2,160,000) -
Written off of convertible bonds (“CB") 3 AT IR AR (B 5
([erpgfEss ) 20(A) - (136,896,000)

Other operating expenses HEMas gt (5,291,976) (10,102,994)
Loss from operations EEBE (152,786,213) (182,133,834)
Finance costs e R 10 (148,474) (550,941)
Loss before tax BBiEIESE 11 (152,934,687) (182,684,775)
Income tax (expense)/credit R (M%) K& 12 (18,628) 203,286
Loss for the year attributable to the EATHEBANEIEERESE

owners of the Company (152,953,315) (182,481,489)
Other comprehensive (expense)/income Hb2H (FX) W
Item that will not be reclassified HET@EXH 7

subsequently to profit or loss: FERKRZIER
Fair value change on investment in NAFEFAEMBEE

financial assets at FVTOCI KR emEERERN

N EEH (2,208,000) 2,252,000

Other comprehensive (expense)/income FRNHEMEE

for the year (AX) MWz (2,208,000) 2,252,000
Total comprehensive expense EATHEBANEIEER

for the year attributable to the 2HEEXEE

owners of the Company (155,161,315) (180,229,489)

HK cents HK cents
Al AL
Loss per share SREBsE
Basic I 16 (4.21) (5.03)
Diluted B 16 (4.21) (5.03)
E—EAeRnEERARAR —_T_=FF#K



Cconsolidated Statement of Financial Position & ik X

At 31 December 2023 R-_Z-_=%+-A=+—H

Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W BERZE 17 2,104,815
Right-of-use assets TRARAE 18 1,745,800
Loans receivables B E R 19 14,876,126
Financial assets at fair value through A AP ER AEM2ER S
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI") ([LARAFEEANH A

2ERE]NeREE 21 2,470,000
Deferred tax assets RIERIEE E 24 21,785,427
Total non-current assets ERBEEBTE 42,982,168
Current assets RENEE
Loans receivables FEWE R 19 201,567,470
Financial assets at FVTPL LAAFERTABRER

TRIEE 20 12,131,676
Prepayments, deposits and TENRIE Ee R

other receivables E & U SR8 4,990,178

Bank and cash balances RITRB S &5 19,836,711
Tax recoverable TR B 7 TE -
Total current assets MENVEEMRRE 238,526,035
Current liabilities REBA&E
Accruals and other payables EFtE R R EA RN RIE 1,240,023
Lease liabilities HEeEaE 22 662,804
Bond payable &S 23 -
Current tax liabilities BNEATIIE & (B 2,484
Total current liabilities MEBERTE 1,905,311
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEZFE 236,620,724
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES ZEAERAHERE 279,602,892
Non-current liabilities ERTEE
Lease liabilities HEAE 22 -
Total non-current liabilities ERBBEEEE -
NET ASSETS BAEEE 279,602,892

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED  Annual Report 2023



Cconsolidated Statement of Financial Position 725 87 F&#A 72 2% continued )
At 31 December 2023 R-ZT-_=%+-_A=+—H

Capital and reserves EXRGHEE

Share capital B A 72,576,000
Reserves L] 207,026,892
TOTAL EQUITY B 279,602,892

The consolidated financial statements on pages 83 to 155 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2024 and are
signed on its behalf by:

FEBIEISSHEMINBMZEAMBREAR T M
FZAZHNBERESSHERRETIE XA
THEEREREZ:

Lui Cheuk Fung
BEE
Director

BE

Lai Szu Yu
BT
Director

BE

F-ERAEAEEARQF —T_=FFH§



consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity iR &R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HE-ZT-_=—F+-_A=-+—HIEFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
FATHE AR

Share Share Capital  Contributed FVTOCI  Accumulated
capital premium reserve surplus reserve losses

WA

Hp2mpds

i EX GG AR Bk tR
(note 26(B)(i))  (note 26B(ii))  (note 268(iii))
(M26(8))  (Ptsk26B(ii))  (Pit=k26B(iii))

HKS HKS HKS
BT ET &
At 1 January 2022 W=E--f-A-H 72,576,000 356,661,862 141,829,615 213,460,470 (574,0000  (324,121,566) 459,832,381
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - (182,481,489)  (182,481,489)
Other comprehensive income for the year: ~ FREMZEMA
Fair value change on investment in WATEGALMNZE
financial assets at FVTOCI WaneBEERER
ATEED - - - - 2,252,000 - 2,252,000
Total comprehensive expense for the year ~ ER2 M X A5 - - - - 2,252,000  (182,481,489)  (180,229,489)
Changes in equity for the year ENEREY - - - - 2252000 (182,481489)  (180,229,489)
At 31 December 2022 RZZE--%+-f=1-A 72,576,000 356,661,862*  141,829,615*  213,460,470* 1,678,000 (506,603,055)* 279,602,892
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - (152,953,315)  (152,953,315)
Other comprehensive expense for the year:  FRE {2 EHX :
Fair value change on investment in WATEFALMZE
financial assets at FVTOCI BaMeBEERED
ATEED - - - - (2,208,000) - (2,208,000)
Total comprehensive expense for the year ~ FRZ AR K 4% - - - - (2,208,000  (152,953,315)  (155,161,315)
Changes in equity for the year EREREH - - - - (2,208,000  (152,953,315)  (155,161,315)
At 31 December 2023 R-E-=F+-f=t-H 72,576,000 356,661,862  141,829,615%  213,460,470* (530,000)  (659,556,370) 124,441,577

* These reserves accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of  * ZEREREERAUBMRARAN
HK$51,865,577 (2022: HK$207,026,892) in the consolidated statement A 51,865,577t (= =
of financial position. £:207,026,892/8 7T) ©

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2023



consolidated Statement of Cash Flows fr&8RERE R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE-ZT-_=F+-_F=+—HIFE

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING LETYPNRLRE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax W 5 B S 1R
Adjustments for: KUATEIERE:
Depreciation of property, plant and W BERBETE
equipment 17
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEETNE 18
Loss on disposal of property, HEME BEREEZ
plant and equipment Iz 9
Bank interest income HRITH B WA 8
Dividend income RS WA 8
Other interest income HAth A B A 8
Fair value loss on financial assets AAFEFABZD
at FVTPL SREENLTEEBR 9
Realised gain from financial assets NAFEFABRRZOE R
at FVTPL BENDER YR 9
Finance costs W% 8 A 10
Impairment loss on loans receivables FEWE SR EEE
Impairment loss on interest receivables FEWR B RE B
Impairment loss recognised on MYE - BE MR EER
property, plant and equipment oNEREN 3! 17
Impairment loss recognised on B REEERER
right-of-use assets R (B T 18 18
Operating (loss)/profit before working EEAREHILE
capital changes (E18) & F
Increase in loans receivables JE W SR

Decrease in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables
(Decrease)/increase in accruals and

BN RIE RE REMER

R D

FERHE R R H b A FUR

other payables CRd) /1
Cash used in operations LEMABRS
Hong Kong profits tax paid EREAEFNEH
Net cash used in operating activities KEEFMAR®FEE

(182,684,775)

1,472,700
1,392,861

(1,019)
(53,565)
(75,550)

167,005,600

(572,600)
550,941
43,143,818

30,178,411
(34,350,209)

159,690

74,989

(3,937,119)
(1,490)

(3,938,609)

E-EMEREMARAT —ToSFEH



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows fR& IR T ME I continued #)
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZZ-_=F+-A=+—HIFE

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING BRETHNRLSRE

ACTIVITIES
Bank interest received EUERITH A 1,019
Other interest received BEUCE 72 75,550
Dividend received BB 53,565
Proceed from disposal of property, HEWE HERZE

plant and equipment Fris A -
Proceed from disposal of financial assets — H & AR F{E T A

at FVTPL TRVEEMS R 11,234,251
Purchases of property, BEME BFE &K

plant and equipment 17 (22,962)
Net cash generated from investing BEEEMEBHRLSFE

activities 11,341,423
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING RETHNRSRE

ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from bond payable FEIE 5 P15 5018 29 -
Repayment of principal portion of BEHEEEREHD

lease liabilities 29 (1,372,752)
Repayment of bond payable BEEMNES 29 (9,000,000)
Interest paid B FLE 29 (623,927)
Net cash generated from/(used in) mEESME (FTA)

financing activities REFH (10,996,679)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND RERBREEEBEBMBLEHR

CASH EQUIVALENTS (3,593,865)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FEMNHRERBEEEY

AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 23,430,576
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EXRBERFLEEY

AT END OF YEAR, represented by &
Bank and cash balances RITRIR S 19,836,711

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED  Annual Report 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements iR S8 ¥R M5t

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZE—_T-_=F+_A=+—HIFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

First Credit Finance Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands and duly continued in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability under the laws of Bermuda. The address of
its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM
11, Bermuda. The address of its principal place of business is Room 1,
7/F, Yue Thai Commercial Building, 128 Connaught Road Central, Hong
Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on GEM of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). On 24 November 2017,
the Securities and Futures Commission directed the Stock Exchange
to suspend the trading in the shares of the Company. As at the date
of approval of these financial statements, the trading of shares of the
Company remains suspended.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of its subsidiaries are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars ("HK$"), which is also the functional currency of the Company.

1.

—REH

F—EReREEERAR([FAT)E
MEeERsSaMiky WIREBREEEMN
EREBERARIFAEXRBRETE-
EFMME R M i AClarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda °
HEZLxmdimi aE B THEEP1285%
BEBERETEIZ - ARAIRNDAR BB
ERXRGMARAR ([B3XFH]) GEMLET -
RZFE—tF+—AZ+HB BHLHE
EHRERZECESHIMYEFEAR AR
MZEBR - RAMBHRREHLEBDH KA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #=5

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T - =F+_-_A=+—HIL&E

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

(A)

AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE MANDATORILY
EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT YEAR

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first time, which
are mandatorily effective for the annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2023 for the preparation of the consolidated

financial statements:

HKFRS 17 including the
October 2020 and
February 2022
Amendments (HKFRS 17)

Insurance Contracts

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

International Tax Reform — Pillar Two
Model Rules

Amendment to HKAS 12

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year had no material impact on the Group’s financial positions
and performance for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements
except as described below.

In accordance with the guidance set out in the amendments,
accounting policy information that is standardised information, or
information that only duplicates or summarises the requirements
of the HKFRSs,
information and is no longer disclosed in the notes to the

is considered immaterial accounting policy

consolidated financial statements so as not to obscure the material
accounting policy information disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #=5
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG 2.
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

’\

(B) NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT NOT (B)
YET EFFECTIVE

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

Amendments to HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets

and HKFRS 10 between an Investor and

its Associate or Joint Venture

(amendments)?

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback’

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as

Presentation of Financial Current or Non-current!
Statements

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants'

Amendments to HKAS 7

and HKFRS 7

Supplier Finance Arrangements’

Amendment to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability?

! effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

2 effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025

3 to be determined

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned below,
the directors anticipate that the application of all other new
and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

/=
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 7 S B4 ¥ 3R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE-ZT-_=—F+-_A=-+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

(B)  NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE (Cont'd)

(@) Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

The amendments provide clarification and additional
guidance on the assessment of right to defer settlement for
at least twelve months from reporting date for classification
of liabilities as current or non-current, which:

. specify that the classification of liabilities as current
or non-current should be based on rights that are
in existence at the end of the reporting period.
Specifically, the amendments clarify that:

(i) the classification should not be affected by
management intentions or expectations to
settle the liability within 12 months; and

(i) if the right is conditional on the compliance
with covenants, the right exists if the conditions
are met at the end of the reporting period,
even if the lender does not test compliance
until a later date; and

o clarify that if a liability has terms that could, at the
option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by
the transfer of the entity’s own equity instruments,
these terms do not affect its classification as current
or non-current only if the entity recognises the option
separately as an equity instrument applying HKAS 32
Financial Instruments: Presentation.

In addition, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 was revised as a
consequence of the Amendments to HKAS 1 to align the
corresponding wordings with no change in conclusion.

Based on the Group's outstanding liabilities as at
31 December 2023, the application of the amendments will
not result in reclassification of the Group’s liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 & 87 353 & MV 5 (continued #)
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZE—_T-_=F+_A=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments, that are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, as explained

in the major accounting policy information set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are
categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance
of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the

measurement date;
. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly

or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %55 84 55 3 22 MY 5 (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZE T - =—F+_-_A=-+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION

(A)

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the

Company:
o has power over the investee;
o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis. The estimated useful lives

are as follows:

Buildings 10%
Leasehold improvements 50%
Furniture and fixture 50%
Office equipment 50%
Computers 50%
Motor Vehicles 25%
Vessel 12.5%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 S B4 FE R Z MY 5T (continued )

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Cont'd)

()

LEASES
The Group as a lessee
Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses and adjusted for any

remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of the
lease term are depreciated from commencement date to the end
of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life

and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of
lease payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at
the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #=5

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZE T - =—F+_-_A=-+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Cont'd)

D)

IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets to determine whether there is any indication that these
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (“CGU") to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a
CGU) for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been

adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset

(or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 S B4 FE R Z MY 5T (continued )

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Cont'd)

(E)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees
and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset or
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the

net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income which are derived from the Group's ordinary
course of business are presented as revenue.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #=5

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZE T - =—F+_-_A=-+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Cont'd)

(B)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)
Financial assets (Cont’d)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Cont'd)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

o the financial asset is held within a business model objective
by both selling and collecting contractual cash flows: and

o the contractual terms given on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at initial recognition of a financial asset the Group
may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value
of an equity investment in other comprehensive income if that
equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination
to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 S B4 FE R Z MY 5T (continued )

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Cont’d)

(B)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)
Financial assets (Cont’d)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Cont'd)

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method
for financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost.
Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except
for financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired. For financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset
from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-
impaired financial instrument improves so that the financial asset
is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer credit-
impaired.

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOC!

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are subsequently
measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes
in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the revaluation reserve; and are not subject to
impairment assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will not be
reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity investments,
and will be transferred to retained profit.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group's right to receive the
dividends is established, unless the dividends clearly represent
a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Dividends are
included in the “other income” line item in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %55 84 55 3 22 MY 5 (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE-ZT-_=—F+-_A=-+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Cont'd)

(B)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)
Financial assets (Cont’d)
Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured
at amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the "other gain/(loss)” in line

item.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under an ECL
model on financial assets (including CB, loans receivables, other
receivables and deposits and bank balances) which are subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is
updated at the end of each reporting period to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the end of the reporting period.
Assessment is done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the end of the reporting period as well as
the forecast of future conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 S B4 FE R Z MY 5T (continued )

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (Cont’d)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;

(B)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)
Financial assets (Cont’d)
Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for loans receivables
without significant financing component. The ECL on these assets
are assessed individually for debtors with significant balances
and/or collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate
groupings.

For all other instruments,
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a

the Company measures the loss

significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in
which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.

(1) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the end of the reporting period with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date
of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportive, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

(@) an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

(b)  significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

(B)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #=5

U 75 3R T2 MY BT (continued )

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZE T - =—F+_-_A=-+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Cont'd)

(E)  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

(1) Significant increase in credit risk (Cont'd)

(c)  existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to

cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to tigE

meet its debt obligations;

(d) an actual or expected significant deterioration in the (d)

operating results of the debtor; or

(e) an actual or expected significant adverse change (e)
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt

obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that

demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to
ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

(i) Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes as
historical experience indicates that receivables that meet

either of the following criteria are generally not recoverable:

o when there is a breach of financial covenants by the °

debtor; or
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #x

=8

= /Z %% ﬁﬁ?ﬁ Bﬁ §$ (continued &)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE-ZT-_=F+-_A=-+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Cont'd)

(B)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

(if)

(1)

Definition of default (Cont'd)

o information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay is creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportive
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that
a financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

(@)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the

borrower;

(b)  a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(¢)  the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise

consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e)  the disappearance of active market for the financial
asset because of financial difficulties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %55 84 55 3 22 MY 5 (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE-ZT-_=—F+-_A=-+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Cont'd)

(B)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

(iv)

V)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of loans receivables, when
the amounts are over 2 years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined with
the respective risks of default occurring as the weights.
The Group uses a practical expedient in estimating ECL
on loans receivables using a provision matrix taking into
consideration historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %5 &S 84 %% 38 2% M1 51 (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE-ZT-_=F+-_A=-+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Cont'd)

(E)  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Cont'd)

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables are considered
on a collective basis taking into consideration past due
information and relevant credit information such as
forward-looking macroeconomic information. For collective
assessment, the Group takes into consideration the
following characteristics when formulating the grouping:

. Past-due status;
o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit-impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of loans receivables, where
the corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #=5

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZE T - =—F+_-_A=-+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Cont'd)

(B)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)
Financial assets (Cont’d)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and
an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing
for the proceeds received. On derecognition of a financial asset
measured at amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and

receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the
Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the revaluation
reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to

retained profit.
Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including accruals and other payables, lease
liabilities and bond payable are subsequently measured at

amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %5 &S 84 %% 38 2% M1 51 (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HE T -_=F+_-_A=-+—HILFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 4. EESHHERER (&)
INFORMATION (Cont’d)

(F)  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RekReEEY
Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and in hand, RekReEBYRERITRFER

demand deposits with banks and short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are

subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

ACCOUNTING IMPLICATIONS OF THE ABOLITION OF THE
MANDATORY PROVIDENT FUND (“MPF") — LONG SERVICE
PAYMENT (“LSP") OFFSETTING MECHANISM IN HONG
KONG

As disclosed in note H(ii), the Group has several subsidiaries
operating in Hong Kong which are obliged to pay LSP to
employees under certain circumstances. Meanwhile, the Group
makes mandatory and voluntary MPF contributions to the trustee
who administers the assets held in a trust solely for the retirement
benefits of each individual employee. Offsetting of LSP against an
employee’s accrued retirement benefits derived from employers’
MPF contributions was allowed under the Employment Ordinance
(Cap.57).

Change in accounting policy on offsetting arrangement in
long service payment scheme in HKSAR

In June 2022, the HKSAR Government enacted the Employment
and Retirement Schemes Legislation (Offsetting Arrangement)
(Amendment) Ordinance 2022 (the “Amendment Ordinance”)
which will be effective from 1 May 2025 (the “Transition
Date"”). Under the Amendment Ordinance, any accrued benefits
attributable to the employer's mandatory contributions under
mandatory provident fund scheme (“MPF Benefits”) of an entity
would no longer be eligible to offset against its obligations on
long service payment (“LSP”) for the portion of the LSP accrued
on or after the Transition Date. There is also a change in the
calculation basis of last monthly wages for the portion of the LSP
accrued before the Transition Date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %55 84 55 3 22 MY 5 (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE-ZT-_=—F+-_A=-+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Cont'd)

(©)

ACCOUNTING IMPLICATIONS OF THE ABOLITION OF THE
MANDATORY PROVIDENT FUND (“MPF") — LONG SERVICE
PAYMENT (“LSP") OFFSETTING MECHANISM IN HONG KONG
(Cont’d)

Change in accounting policy on offsetting arrangement in
long service payment scheme in HKSAR (Contd)

Prior to 1 January 2023, the Group applied practical expedient in
HKAS 19 paragraph 93(b) (the “Practical expedient”) to account
for the offsetable MPF Benefits as deemed employee contributions
to reduce the current service costs in the period in which the
related services were rendered.

In July 2023, the HKICPA published “Accounting implications of
the abolition of the MPFLSP offsetting mechanism in HKSAR"
(the "Guidance”) which provides clarified and detailed guidance
on the accounting considerations relating to the abolition of
the offsetting mechanism. The Guidance clarified that following
the enactment of the Amendment Ordinance, LSP is no longer
a “simple type of contributory plans” to which the Practical
expedient had been intended to apply.

By following the Guidance, the Group has therefore changed its
accounting policy and ceased to apply the Practical expedient and
reattribute the deemed employee contributions on a straight-line
basis from the date when services by employees first lead to their
benefits in terms of the LSP legislation in accordance with HKAS
19 paragraph 93(a). The cumulative effect of recognising these
adjustments as of 31 December 2022 or for the year then ended
was not material and hence no adjustment was made to the
beginning accumulated losses, or another component of equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #x
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Cont'd)

(H)

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

(i)

(i)

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the

benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)
after deducting any amount already paid.

Retirement benefit obligations

The Group contributes to a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Ordinance for all employees in Hong Kong. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’ relevant
income and are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group's employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed in the MPF Scheme. Under
the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contribution to the MPF Scheme at 5% of
the employees’ relevant income subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$30,000.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %55 84 55 3 22 MY 5 (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE-ZT-_=—F+-_A=-+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Cont'd)

(H)

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Cont’d)
(il)  Termination benefits

A liability for a termination benefit is recognized at the
earlier of when the Group entity can no longer withdraw
the offer of the termination benefit and when it recognize
any related restructuring costs.

TAXATION
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from loss before taxation because of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 S B4 FE R Z MY 5T (continued )

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Cont'd)

)

TAXATION (Cont'd)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover

or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.

REVENUE

Interest income from loan facilities

Interest income charged on loan facilities is recognised as it
accrues using the effective interest method. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of
the asset. For credit-impaired financial assets, the effective interest
rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount
net of loss allowance) of the asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #=5

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZE T - =—F+_-_A=-+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Cont'd)

(K)

PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

RELATED PARTIES

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(A) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii)  is a member of the key management personnel of the

Group or the Group’s parent.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %5 &S 84 %% 38 2% M1 51 (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HE T -_=F+_-_A=-+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Cont'd)

() RELATED PARTIES (Cont'd)

(B)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i)

(iii)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member

of a group of which the other entity is a member);

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the

other entity is an associate of the third entity;

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (A);

A person identified in (A)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); or

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of a person are those family members who

may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that

person in their dealings with the entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 75
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZE_ZT_=F+_A=+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (Cont’d)

(M)  GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expense or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group with
no future related costs are costs recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group'’s accounting policies, which the material
policies are described in note 4, the Directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and underlying assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following is the critical judgements, apart from those involving
estimations, that the Directors have made in the process of applying the
Group's accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Significant increase in credit risk

As explained in note 4, ECL measured as an allowance equal to
12-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage
3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition. HKFRS 9 does not define what
constitutes a significant increase in credit risk. In assessing whether the
credit risk of an asset has significantly increased the Group takes into
account qualitative and quantitative reasonable and supportive forward-
looking information.

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2023

%ﬁ&ﬁ%%mmm%
4, EEGTTHERER (&)

(M) BT B)

BB R A AR HE RN EERTE
BT 470 B BT T 755 809 f6R 1 I 8 MK B 4 B
E#E%ﬁgﬁzu

e A E 2 B S R B 1 B S
s 58460 5 1 75 4 B (3% B 4% 1R
CRESLETS TN §E0
B B E A T MOR 0 S P 4
B -

EXSEHE R AT REE
HEMNETERIR

NERASE ST HE (B E4mt e E
BB BEFZARTAEREMERNK
BRMESRENEERABREEELH
b A MR & - F A RBR BRI
BERELREEMIRESEBNEREDL -
BRAEREB BN Z EMAT -

H FRHEHZEME EEREELR
ﬁﬁﬁm/ﬂiﬁﬁﬁ/ﬂm%ﬁ?
EE?VE. ABEBETTR e Tz HRRNER:
I MBI HEREARARAMEE
8 Rl e %S 5T BAR KRR 2R B
A HERR

SITBREEL 2 ERHE

%&Fﬁ?rﬁ’#\ BN AT RESRERAN
B BRBREFELEYHEAMBR
i’%ﬁﬂﬁ&mfﬂ’ﬂi%’ﬁéiﬁiﬁwaE!’J#Uﬁﬁ

=ERBEE -

W AR MEEEBERE —RRE
F W#F+ 18 A T8 53 (= B B 1R A B T

RECRRAE—EREERHES
mﬁ%ﬁm%ﬁ?i,éﬁﬂﬁmA %8
IR EBRE L AREAE _BR B
W%ﬁiEW%%ﬁﬁﬁ EEW@A

BELANAZ - RIAGHEENEER

m@ﬁtﬂh ﬁE%%Eéﬁ&T#%
MM EERBEIEER -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %5 &S 84 %% 38 2% M1 51 (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE-ZT-_=F+-_A=-+—HIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Cont’d)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period
that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

ECL allowance for loans receivables

The directors estimate the amount of ECL allowance for loans receivables
based on the credit risk of loans receivables. The amount of the loss
allowance based on ECL model is measured as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.
Where the future cash flows are less than expected, or being revised
downward due to changes in facts and circumstances, a material
impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 December 2023, impairment allowance for loans receivables
was approximately HK$578.29 million (2022: approximately HK$461.50
million).

Deferred tax asset

As at 31 December 2023, a deferred tax asset of HK$21,758,948
(2022: HK$21,785,427) which principally arising from the provision
for impairment on loans receivables has been recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised on the tax losses of HK$329,225,510
(2022: HK$324,812,740) for non-operating subsidiaries due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The realisability of the deferred
tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient future profits or taxable
temporary differences will be available in the future, which is a key
source of estimation uncertainty. In cases where the actual future
taxable profits generated are less or more than expected, or change in
facts and circumstances which result in revision of future taxable profits
estimation, a material reversal or further recognition of deferred tax
assets may arise, which would be recognised in profit or loss for the
period in which such a reversal or further recognition takes place.
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BERBEBBUS T RRERDUREF B Al
AREERENBEENEABESGE—F
TR WG B B Bl ol — TR B £ H
FR B ER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 84 3% %R 72 Mt 5T (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE-ZT-_=—F+-_A=-+—HIFE

6.

REVENUE

6. Wz

Revenue from sources other than contracts
with customers:

EXBENT WA

Interest income from loan facilities

KEEMAR (REREP
FISLHAHISN) 2 s :

6,354,746 50,692,834

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the management has
reassessed the collectability of the interest income of certain credit-
impaired loans receivables that are no longer probable and therefore not
recognise the interest income in the profit or loss during the year.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

During the year ended 31 December 2023, all of the Group’s revenue has
been generated from the provision and arrangement of credit financing
in Hong Kong. Revenue represents interest income earned from loans
offered to the Group's customers. Information reported to the Group's
chief operating decision maker (the executive directors of the Company),
for the purposes of resources allocation and assessment of the Group's
performance, is focused on the operating results of the Group as a
whole, as the Group’s resources are integrated and no discrete financial
information is available. Accordingly, no segment analysis or information
about the Group’s products and services was presented.

All of the Group's revenue from external customers and assets were
generated from and located in Hong Kong during the years ended
31 December 2023 and 2022. For the years ended 31 December 2023
and 2022, no revenue from a single external customer amounted to
10% or more of the Group's revenue.

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 & 84 7% %) 22 Mt 5T (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BEZZ-_=F+-F=+—HIFE

8. OTHER INCOME 8. Halg A

Bank interest income RATHFBUA 1,019
Dividend income g S A 53,565
Other interest income H b A B A 75,550
Sundry income I 34,543
Government grants (Note) BB (FTsE) 552,000
716,677

Note: Government grants mainly represent subsidies received in connection with MieE: BB £ BEiRE BB R ATEREBAT (B

the support from the Anti-epidemic Fund of the Government of Hong EMEES I OIEBETRINOMAL -ZEWH

Kong Special Administrative Region. There are no unfulfilled conditions or I A 8 AR E R IR ek B 2 B M A

contingencies relating to these subsidies. FIHE-
9. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES, NET 9. Hiku=REEFHE

Fair value loss on financial NAFEFABRZNEMEERN

assets at FVTPL NEERE (30,109,600)
Loss on disposal of property, HEMHE BERZENERE

plant and equipment -
Realised gain from financial assets NAFEFAEZNENEEDN

at FVTPL BRI 572,600
Impairment loss recognised on YK BE KR AR

property, plant and equipment WA EE -
Impairment loss recognised on B REEEERN

right-of-use assets B EEE -
Other Hi1E B -

(29,537,000)

F-ERAEAEEARQF —T_=FFH§
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 84 3% %R 72 Mt 5T (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZZ-_=F+-A=+—HIFE

10. FINANCE COSTS 10. &R

Interest on lease liabilities HEBENHT R 151,248
Interest on bond payable FEREFF A 399,693
550,941
11. LOSS BEFORE TAX 11. BRBEATE 18
The Group's loss before tax is stated after charging the following: REENRBABES TR T FE:

Auditor’s remuneration % ERT B & 820,000
Depreciation of property, plant and WM BERZENE
equipment 1,472,700
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRAEEAENE 1,392,861
Legal and professional fees EEREXEBR 3,201,309
Written off of convertible bonds W85 AT HR AR (E 136,896,000
12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) 12. FRBHMAX% (&)

BT IR —F B NS

Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax

Provision for the year FREE 13,400
Over-provision in prior years BEFEBEREE (31,359)
(17,959)

Deferred tax (note 24) IRIERIE (FiT5E24) (185,327)
(203,286)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %7 S B4 ¥ 3R 22 M 5T (continued )

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) (Cont’d)

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of

assessable profits of a corporation are taxed at 8.25%, and assessable
profits above HK$2 million are taxed at 16.5%. For the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022, Hong Kong Profits Tax of the nominated

Group company is calculated in accordance with the two-tiered profits

tax rates regime. The assessable profits of other Group companies in

Hong Kong continue to be taxed at the tax rate of 16.5%.

The reconciliation between the income tax expense/(credit) and the loss
before tax multiplied by the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate is as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZE_ZT_=F+_A=+—HIFE

12. FRB%iBAx (%) (&)

R IR A5 B AR AR § - 2 5] 82,000,000 7T &
SRR A 2 B R B8.25% © M #8i82,000,000
BILEABAEZHER165% HEZT
CTEFRZTEZF+ZA=FT—HIEF
B BREEEQARNTBANEH HIRBRH
BRMASTE HthAEENESAAH
FERT R AL B 1216.5% B0 Bl RERFR

FrisBims/ (He) BRBRATEERAT
AMNERREZEHENAT

Loss before tax B T AT A5 48 (152,934,687) (182,684,775)
Tax at the applicable tax rate of REABE165% (2T

16.5% (2022: 16.5%) 16.5% )T E R IE (25,234,223) (30,142,987)
Tax effect of income that is not taxable ~ HZER W AT HK 2 2 (41,865) (55,045)
Tax effect of expenses that are AR MBRAZOB BT E

not deductible 1,414,916 30,230,577
Tax effect of temporary difference RERERFEZENTBTE

not recognised 23,159,544 4,763,708
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses BABTRERANIEEEN

not previously recognised HGsEE - (4,968,180)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERBBEREEANRETE 728,107 -
Over-provision in prior years BT FEBERE (7,851) (31,359)
Income tax expense/(credit) FrgRiFx, (%) 18,628 (203,286)

E—EAeRnEERARAR —_T_=FF#K
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements =&

13. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

RERMAX

Employee benefits expenses (excluding

directors’ emoluments): (T"BREEEH:) :
Salaries and allowances e RoERL
Performance related bonuses R
Pension scheme contributions RIRSET R

87 75 3R ZRBV 5T (continued )

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZZ-_=F+-A=+—HIFE

13. BEER|AMRX

PENSION SCHEME CONTRIBUTIONS

No forfeited contributions were utilised during the year (2022: Nil).
No balance (2022: Nil) of forfeited contributions were available at
the year-end to reduce future contributions.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees in the Group during the year
included two directors (2022: two) whose emoluments are set out
in note 14. The emoluments of the remaining three highest paid
employees (2022: three) are as follows:

Salaries, allowances and e RMREVEF
benefits in kind
Performance related bonuses

=RABEIEL
5&%%#%

Pension scheme contributions

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED  Annual Report 2023

5,888,029
440,120
291,395

6,619,544

RN F IR

FAMEHARRBHERI (=T ==
Fom) REHLR MED RN
Mg (T ZF &) AREHE
RIRPLIK o

hekm#HER
FAAEERERSHEEREM

HER(CT-_F:WE) HBle
IR 14 - EBp =L R HEE

(==& Z8) 2 MeEERY
mT

1,337,600
181,600
54,000

1,573,200




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 & 84 7% %) 22 Mt 5T (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZE_ZT_=F+_A=+—HIFE

13. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES (Cont’d)

(B)

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Cont'd)

The emoluments of the remaining three (2022: three) highest paid

employees fell within the following bands:

Nil to HK$ 1,000,000

£ %1,000,000/% 7T

13. BEE/AMX (&

(B)

hER=HER (&)

E®B =% (ZE-—F =%)85H
EEMMEN FUATEHE:

2023
—¥=-=

Number of
employees

EE A

14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

A

DIRECTORS' AND CEO'S EMOLUMENTS

The remuneration of the directors and the CEO, Ms. Ho Yuen May
May, for the year ended 31 December 2023 disclosed pursuant to

applicable Listing Rules and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,

is set out below:

14 EE|/AE R &=

(A)

EERITHRASME

WA R R A REB DB GRHIE
BEFRTREARAABRZTEE=
T =F+-A=+—RALEFENH
BEIIWAT

Emoluments paid or payable in respect of a person’s services as a director/CEO,

whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
BRETALUES TBERI B (FREFATHRMBEAF)
iRt E RSB AN E

Salaries

Performance Pension

related scheme
bonuses  contributions

R BiRE
fe4l sHEIE R

Executive directors: HITES:

Xie Si Bk - 240,000 - - 240,000
Lui Cheuk Fung mEE 660,000 - - - 660,000
Lai Szu Yu BRIF - 240,000 - 12,000 252,000
Ho Yuen May May ] 50 5% - 715,000 - 18,000 733,000
Independent non-executive directors: B EHITES:

Fung Kam Man 5883 120,000 - - - 120,000
Wang Zhiwei FE# 120,000 - - - 120,000
Wong Kin Ning ERE 120,000 - - - 120,000
Li Long S 120,000 - - - 120,000
Choy Sze Chung Jojo (Note) BB (Ha) 110,000 - - - 110,000
Total A 1,250,000 1,195,000 - 30,000 2,475,000

F-ERAEAEEARQF —T_=FFH§
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 84 3% %R 72 Mt 5T (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZZ-_=F+-A=+—HIFE

14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 14, EEE@ARAE (&)

(Cont’d)

(A) DIRECTORS' AND CEQ’S EMOLUMENTS (Cont'd) A BERITHREHMNE (£
The remuneration of the directors and the CEO for the year ended BEERTREZBE_S-_—_F1+=
31 December 2022 is set out below: A=t—HIEFENMSEINWT

Executive directors: HITES:

Xie Si Bk - 240,000 - - 240,000
Lui Cheuk Fung Be% 660,000 - - - 660,000
Lai Szu Yu B - 240,000 - 12,000 252,000
Ho Yuen May May Al 50%% - 715,000 - 18,000 733,000

Independent non-executive directors: BIFEHITES:

Fung Kam Man B8R 120,000 - - - 120,000
Wang Zhiwei T 120,000 - - - 120,000
Wong Kin Ning BiEE 120,000 - - - 120,000
Li Long 3 120,000 - - - 120,000
Choy Sze Chung Jojo (Note) =B 120,000 - - - 120,000
Total W 1,260,000 1,195,000 - 30,000 2,485,000
Note: Resigned on 30 November 2023. M R-ZE_=ZF+—A=+HEIE-

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED  Annual Report 2023



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 S B4 FE R Z MY 5T (continued )

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;

14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Cont’d)

(A)

DIRECTORS’ AND CEQ’'S EMOLUMENTS (Cont'd)

Ms. Ho Yuen May May is the CEO of the Company and her
emoluments disclosed above include those for services rendered
by her as the Chief Executive Officer.

There was no arrangement under which a Director or the CEO
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year
(2022: Nil).

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, there
were no amounts paid or payable by the Group to the Directors
or any of the five highest paid individuals as set out in note 13
below as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and the Group.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were for their services as directors of the Company.

DIRECTORS" MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation
to the Group's business to which the Company was a party and
in which a director of the Company (including any person who
at any time during the year was a director) or the director’s
connected entity had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

E_T =Gy =gy HiSE

14 EE/ARRE (&)

EERTTBREEME (&)

WEBmZ L /AR RAITHAE - £EX
HREFAMELHNNERRRERTR
BEPTRERE 2 E -

FARBEERTHREZNEXRAE
MEEAMEN R (—F = —4%:
&) -

HE_Z-_-FRk-_FT-_—_F+-A
=ST-ALFE - AEEHERNES
S TXHFI3ME AR &= MAL
AR AT A 32 BkRE A A Rl RROIE
YE B DN A ZN 6 ] ok N A 2N 52 [ 14 i) 4%
B IERRER A E -

EXFRBTEEZCME IR EER
BARABARAEEEBRREZ RS
s e

EXRBILIFNITESOME 5L
REREARBESRIRHE 2 REM
XA e

EERR5 ZHABHNERX

Rz

ARAEZ (BRRFALAERS
BEEZHEAADREENHEER
BERFEAFRERMSE DRE
BUIARRRUERFI W77 BEAREEZ
BEHNERRS ZHREHTHE
BEELHENEANES -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 S B4 F& R Z2 MY 5T (continued )

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE-ZT-_=—F+-_A=-+—HIFE
15. DIVIDENDS

The directors did not recommend the payment of any dividend to
shareholders for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

16. LOSS PER SHARE

BASIC LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on the loss for the
year attributable to owners of the Company of HK$152,953,315 (2022:
HK$182,481,489) and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
of 3,628,800,000 (2022: 3,628,800,000) in issue during the year.

DILUTED LOSS PER SHARE
Diluted loss per share was the same as basic loss per share as the

Company did not have any potential ordinary shares outstanding during
the two years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %5 & 84 55 38 2% M 5T (continued &)
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

o=

SE+-A=+—AILEE

17. 9% -BERRKRH

Leasehold  Furniture and Office Motor
Buildings  improvements fixture  equipment  Computers vehicle Vessel
HE RER
¥ L £ BERE Bl RE L
HKS HK$ HKS HKS HK$ HKS
&L #L L L &L #EL
Cost 7%
At 1 January 2022 RZZZZ§-A-H 187,561 1,245,220 674,869 402,010 4,171,068 900,000 1,864,683 9,445,411
Additions hE - - 12,247 5376 5339 - - 22,962
At 31 December 2022 and R-E-—#+-A=1+-AK
1 January 2023 —%-=%-8-H 187,561 1,245,220 687,116 407,386 4,176,407 900,000 1,864,683 9,468,373
Additions AE - - 23,500 8,446 582,500 105,000 - 719,446
Disposals e - - - - - (1,005000) (1,864,683)  (2,869,683)
Written off i34 = (970,730) - - - - - (970,730)
At 31 December 2023 RZZE=Z=§+-A=1+-H 187,561 274,490 710,616 415,832 4,758,907 - - 6,347,406
Accumulated depreciation ~ BEitHFERIE
and impairment
At 1 January 2022 RZZZZ§-A-H 187,561 881,196 605,379 386,176 3,253,897 168,750 407,899 5,890,858
Charge for the year FREL - 364,024 69,490 16,443 564,657 225,000 233,086 1,472,700
At 31 December 2022 and R-E-—#+-A=1+-RAKk
1 January 2023 —%-=%-8-H 187,561 1,245,220 674,869 402,619 3,818,554 393,750 640,985 7,363,558
Charge for the year FREE - - 2,833 10,953 531,330 149,188 38,847 733,151
Disposals LE - - - - - (542,938) (679,832)  (1,222,770)
Written off bt = (970,730) - - - - - (970,730)
Impairment A - - 32,914 2,260 409,023 - - 444,197
At 31 December 2023 RZE=Z=§+-A=1+-H 187,561 274,490 710,616 415,832 4,758,907 - - 6,347,406
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2023 RZZE=Z=§+-A=1+-H - - - - - - - -
At 31 December 2022 RZEZZ5+ZA=1-H = = 12,247 4,767 357,853 506,250 1,223,698 2,104,815

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recognised an
impairment loss of HK$444,197 on the property, plant and equipment
which has been fully impaired. Based on the profit forecast prepared by
the management, the value in use of the recoverable amount, which
was primarily affected by increasingly competitive business environment
of credit financing, was estimated to be less than its carrying amount.

HE_Z-_=F+-_A=+—HLFE &

SEERME BERE

(E28RE)

AR EE 184441978 T - R IEESEKEE
RELH B FITER - TEEA AT I Bl & A E A E
BE(EFZX CEmMENENERERFAS

By

N

VIR E R E(E -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %5 & B4 55 8 22 MY 5T (continued &)
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE-ZT-_=—F+-_A=-+—HIFE

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

18. EREEE

Leasehold Lease
land property
HELH HEME
HK$ HK$
AT I
Cost 5% 3
At 1 January 2022 and RZEZZF—HA—HRK
31 December 2022 and T+ -A=+—HK
1 January 2023 —E-=%—H—H 1,618,044 4,048,000 5,666,044
Additions NE - 272,167 272,167
Write off (Note A) s (HEEA) - (4,048,000) (4,048,000)
1,618,044 272,167 1,890,211
Accumulated depreciation EitirERBE
and impairment
At 1 January 2022 R-_E-_—_F—H—H 507,018 2,020,365 2,527,383
Charge for the year FAZH 43,533 1,349,328 1,392,861
At 31 December 2022 and RZTEZZF+ZA=+—8BKk
1 January 2023 —E=-=%—H—H 550,551 3,369,693 3,920,244
Charge for the year FRZH 43,534 746,349 789,883
Write off (Note A) wss (MIEEA) - (4,048,000) (4,048,000)
Impairment (Note B) BB (H5EB) 1,023,959 204,125 1,228,084
At 31 December 2023 RZZBZ=F+=A=+—H 1,618,044 272,167 1,890,211
Carrying amount AREE
At 31 December 2023 RZZBZ=F+=-A=+—H - - -
At 31 December 2022 R-EZE-_—_F#+-_HA=+—H 1,067,493 678,307 1,745,800
Notes: B 5
A.  During the year ended 31 December 2023, the cost and A HEZZFE-_=F+-A=+t—HILF

E-aREOER FREEENK
AN K 25T E #94,048,0008 7T T A

accumulated deprecation of right-of-use assets amounted to
approximately HK$4,048,000 were written off due to the expiry of
the leases.

HE-_Z-_-F+-_A=+—HIHF
B AEEEHREAEEE(E2H
R E) FER R B B 181,228,084 7T
BB IR ERE AT A B
e ENEHAEE(EEEXE
ERENERRERFARERTEE)
EREIREE-

B. During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recognised B.
an impairment loss of HK$1,228,084 on the right-of-use assets
which has been fully impaired. Based on the profit forecast
prepared by the management, the value in use of the recoverable
amount, which was primarily affected by increasingly competitive
business environment of credit financing, was estimated to be less
than its carrying amount.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 & 84 7% %) 22 Mt 5T (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BEZZ-_=F+-F=+—HIFE

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Cont’d)

The following table is the amount recognised in profit or loss:

CREEENE

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

The Group had total cash outflows for leases including interest paid on
lease liabilities and payment of lease liabilities amounted to HK$828,597
for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: HK$1,637,440).

LEASEHOLD LAND

The Group's leasehold land in Hong Kong under medium lease within 24
years.

For both years, the Group leases various offices for its operations. Lease
contracts were entered into for fixed term of 2 years (2022: 3 years).
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain different
terms and conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing the
length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition
of a contract and determines the period for which the contract is
enforceable.

19. LOANS RECEIVABLES

18. EFAIEEE (&

TERANERRRANSHE:

1,392,861

BE-_ZE-_=€+-_A=+—HBIEE"
AEERMEEMELENR SR LAE (2
ERHEEaEINNMNERINEEEE)
/828,597 L (ZE = = F 1 1,637,440/%8
T e

HELT

KEBREBZHRET AR HEORA
24%F o

RUEMEFE AEESHEEREZE
MAE-HESOEMFNETHR (—F
CoFZF)RI N -MERRTIRE R E
R WEE TR GRS R EER
EHMFHET AR RER - ARE
ERANNERLETEAHNABREHNITH
HARR

19. ERE R

127

Fixed-rate loans receivables e E B ER 585,305,118
Accrued interest receivables JiE SR R A1) B, 92,638,646
677,943,764
Less: ECL on individual assessment BB R TR E B E S (285,084,475)
ECL on collective assessment SRTHNEREREER (176,415,693)
ECL on accrued interest receivables FEUR FEET R B R TE ERZ H B8 -
216,443,596

Analysed as: e
— Non-current - 3ER® 14,876,126
— Current - MRE 201,567,470
216,443,596

F-ERAEAEEARQF —T_=FFH§



128

The range of effective interest rate of fixed-rate loans receivables are
from 10% to 46% (2022: 3.6% to 46%).

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding loans
receivables to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by management.

The loans receivables above were denominated in HK$. The credit quality
analysis of the gross carrying amounts of loans receivables were as

follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 84 3% %R 72 Mt 5T (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE-ZT-_=—F+-_A=-+—HIFE

19. LOANS RECEIVABLES (Cont'd) 19. EWER (&)

FBREEERZEBNEZHEN T10%E
46% (ZE - —F3.6%%46% ) °

AR ER B — B R AR HR I R U B A R R 7
KB EERRRERE EREEEHNRER
HEeRe

bt B R AE TTAHE < FE R E AR R
HENEELDRATNT:

Neither past due nor impaired R IR R (E
- Secured —HER - 19,299,138
- Unsecured — fE KR 21,180,690 51,941,448
Less than 3 months past due BMEATE=@A 31,178 29,223,514
Over 3 months past due mERE=AA - 25,549,488
21,211,868 126,013,588
Impaired (Note) WAE (KD 655,830,162 551,930,176
677,042,030 677,943,764

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a large
number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent history
of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of
customers who have repayment to the Group. Based on past experience,
the directors were of the opinion that these loans were not yet credit
impaired as these loans receivables would be substantially/fully settled
subsequent to the reporting period or there had not been a significant
change in credit quality on these balances.

As at 31 December 2023, amongst all past due but not impaired loans,
the Group did not have secured loan (2022: a secured revolving loan
of HK$19,092,362 was secured by equity interest in a private company
with value amounted to HK$80,525,004). Save for the above, the Group
did not hold any collateral in respect of the remaining individually past
due but not impaired loans receivables as at 31 December 2023.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 & 84 7% %) 22 Mt 5T (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BEZZ-_=F+-F=+—HIFE

19. LOANS RECEIVABLES (Cont'd) 19. BIRERK (&)
Details of movement of ECL allowance for the year ended 31 December HE_ZTZ-_=Fk-_FT=-__F+=A
2023 and 2022 is set out in note 28(C) to the consolidated financial ST HIEFERREEEEBENED
statements. FHBEHIIRERE MWK M F28(0)
As at 31 December 2023, the Group pledged loans receivables with R-ZE-_=ZF+-A=+—8 A£ED5
aggregated gross amount of approximately HK$8,000,000 for a bond 4RA B TS 3R R BT 5E23 A7 b A9 FE B 35 1K 3
payable described in note 23 to the consolidated financial statements. 4 %EX) 58,000,000/ ST H) FEUR B 7K

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL 20. AR FEFAEENEHE

=3

8 HIA A FEF AR

Financial assets mandatorily measured

at FVTPL: AENEREE:
- CB (Note 20(A)) — Al E S (FTEE20(A)) -
— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong —REBLTZRAES
(Note 20(B)) (HF3E20(8) ) 12,131,676
12,131,676
Analysed for reporting purposes REWEBOAEZDNT
— Current assets —mENAE 12,131,676
12,131,676

F-ERAEAEEARQF —T_=FFH§
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 7 S B4 ¥ 3R 72 Mt 5T (continued )

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZE T - =—F+_-_A=-+—HILFE

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL (Contd) 20. %’?$EE‘I‘)\E§H’\J$E§§
(A)  INVESTMENT ON CB (A FIERBESFRE

Movements of the CB for the years ended 31 December 2023
and 2022 are as follows:

HE_T-_=FR-_ZT-__F+=A
=+—BIEFERBERESNEEHN
T

At 1 January 2022 RZFEZ—F—H—H
Written off i 5

136,896,000
(136,896,000)

At 31 December 2022, 1 January 2023 and RIBEZZF+_A=+—H"

31 December 2023 —E-=F—F—BK

—E-=F+-A=+—8

The CB was issued on 29 June 2020 (the “Issue Date”) with
principal amount of HK$184,000,000 by a listed company listed
on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (“the Listed Company”).

The CB bear interest at 1% per annum payable in arrears
annually with maturity on the 5th anniversary of the date of
issue of the Bonds i.e. 29 June 2025. The Group has right to
convert the CB into share of the Listed Company from the
date immediately after the expiration of three years from the
Issue Date of the CB (i.e. 29 June 2020) to 29 June 2025 at a
conversion price HK$5.5 per share. The Group has the right to
convert the CB into 33,454,545 shares of the Listed Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 S B4 FE R Z MY 5T (continued )

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL (Cont'd)

(A)

INVESTMENT ON CB (Cont'd)

The Group designated the CB as at FVTPL upon initial recognition
with any gain or loss arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss.

As at 31 December 2022, certain events occurred which made
the recoverability of the CB become uncertain, including (1) the
Listed Company failed to settle the CB interest in June 2022
and December 2022 which constituted a default event; (2) the
trading of the shares of the Listed Company had been suspended
since August 2022; (3) the Listed Company was being filed a
winding-up petition by a petitioner in November 2022; and (4) the
composition of the board of directors of the Listed Company were
dismissed by end 2022. The Group sought legal advice regarding
its entitlement priority of assets distribution upon winding-up of
the Listed Company. Taking into consideration of the nature of
the CB as an unsecured debt and that the facts and circumstance,
the management was in the opinion the likelihood to recover the
CB was remote and the entire CB was written off with a loss of
HK$136,896,000 charged to profit or loss in the previous financial
year.

E_T =Gy =gy HiSE

20. LA FEFFARZNEHME
E (&)

(A)

ABRESRE (&)

2R B P ) 2 e SR A PR AR (B 5 4
EREATVEFAED MEHAE
EEMEMRERE RN IESHER

HE-_Z-_—_F#+-_A=+—8BLt#F
B B#ETETEHRE: ()ZL™W
RAEBEER_ZT__FRARZE
ToF+ AN RBRESNFE
MEBREXN: Q& LEMARRME =
T__FNABREILESR: Q)% Em
RARZEZZF+— AW — R =2H
AREBERES R@ZLTAAE
ECECR_E__FFEEME-ME
B R AR (5 5 0 AT U (20 1 B 18 TN RESE ©
AEECRER LT ARBREEE
BESRENAFRIEZEBR &Z
B R R E S A 1 B A IR R E B
FEBAFERBR EFRATMKE
BMBREHFNE S EN - B2
AR E 5 - I 5 E5 18 136,896,00078
Tt BT BEEEES -

E-ERASRKEERAR —T-=FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7& 84 75 2R 28 MY 55 continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZE T - =—F+_-_A=-+—HILFE

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL (Cont'd) 20. %’?$EE‘I‘)\E§H’\J$E§§
(B) LISTED SECURITIES HELD FOR TRADING (B) HIEEBEM LEMESH

Listed securities held for trading: BEEBEM EMES:

— Equity securities listed —REBLETHORAE
in Hong Kong 1,531,896 12,131,676
Analysed as: s
Current asset RBEE 1,531,896 12,131,676
As at 31 December 2022, the Group received equity securities RZFEZZF+ZA=+H #HR
listed in Hong Kong with fair value at date of derecognition of I tERNEREREEAEAR
loan receivable of HK$33,653,334 due to derecognition of loan 49,188,840/ 7T AR S B AR A2 FHERR
receivable of amount with HK$49,188,840 with the difference JEWEREWEAEERE L2 A E
recognised as a loss on derecognition of loan receivables of % (BRE A A33,653,334%8 L) - £ =
HK$15,535,506 in profit or loss during the year ended 31 ¥H15,535,506 B TREEZE T - —F
December 2022. This constituted a non-cash transaction in TZAZTHRLEEEBEEFRERAK
previous year. IFEREWERE B - EEKBETF
E-IEEBRERS
During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group disposed HE_T-_=F+-A=+—HILF
of certain equity securities for aggregate consideration of EAKEHERSBRAFEFUER
HK$8,320,233 and recognised a realised gain of HK$217,576 and 188,320,233 7 WA E E\iﬁl—&ﬁﬁ
a fair value change of HK$2,497,123 recognised to profit or loss. 217576 B T RN ERFER AR T
B2 82,497,123 7T °
The fair value of equity securities listed in Hong Kong are based REALTHRAFSNAFEDE
on the current market prices of such equity securities as at the REZERAFEFNREBARNEITT
end of the reporting period. Be
The above financial assets represent investments in listed equity MeMEEER ETRABSNE
securities that offer the Company the opportunity for return é TERREWARATFERZE R
through dividend income and fair value gains. They have no fixed RR B AR A B A o HO [ E B
maturity or coupon rate. HAKEmEE-
At 31 December 2023 and 2022, the fair value measurements of RZEZ=FR=ZZT==F+=A
the Group's investment in listed securities classified as financial =tT—H KXEBESEANUAFEE
assets at FVTPL are recurring and are determined using level 1 ABEHESREEN FHEFREMN
input. HEMNATEDKEEE WEAE—
R ABIEETE -

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2023



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 & 84 7% %) 22 Mt 5T (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BEZZ-_=F+-F=+—HIFE

21. UAFEFFARMEEKSE
MEmMEE

21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTOCI

Non-current JERE

Equity investments designated HEERAUATFER AHAM
at FvTOCI 2 E U E AR E

— Unlisted equity investments (Note) —JEEmRAEE ()

Note:  Unlisted investment shares were measured at FVTOCI. Under HKFRS 9,
these investments are all classified as financial assets measured at FVTOCI.
Subsequent changes in fair value of these investments are recognised
in FVTOCI reserve and the cumulative gains or loss on disposals are
recognised in retained earnings.

The above unlisted equity investments represent the Group's equity
interest in private entity incorporated in Hong Kong. The directors of
the Company have elected to designate these investments in equity
instruments as FVTOCI.

22. LEASE LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2023, the lease liabilities were repayable as follows:

Within 1 year —FR

S

2,470,000

FELEMREBRDARTEFARLMBEE
WasETE - RIRE BB IR &L RE W -
REREHDER/RANRFEF AL LS
EWEAENERERE ZSFHREAQFE
MEREHRUARFE AL MBE2EY
HOFEERR MHEELNRARER
ERNRE BN R

ERFETRARBERAKRERE RS
MAZIARROBE ARRESE
BERZERETAREEEAURT
Bt AR EERE -

22. HEAE

R-B-=%f+_-A=+—HB HEAEN
EEMBMT

After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFA
Less: Amount due for settlement BRBBEBETRTZEAR
within 12 months shown FHAE E IR

under current liabilities

Amount due for settlement after ERFHEEE TR ZEA%

12 months shown under B HRE E R FIB
non-current liabilities

Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEBENFSHX

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to lease
liabilities was 5.54% (2022: 5.54%).

662,804

(662,804)

151,248

BRARHEEENMETYEEEERNX
B554% (Z T -4 :554%) ¢

F-ERAEAEEARQF —T_=FFH§
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 84 3% %R 72 Mt 5T (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZZ-_=F+-A=+—HIFE

23. BOND PAYABLE

Movement of the bond payable is as follows:

At 1 January
Proceeds from issuance of bond
Repayment

Accrued interests

23. B ES

BNEHRZEHNT:

(9,000,000)

(9,000,000)

Less: Accrued interests recognised
in accruals and other payables

R ERHE R R A N R
R ERTE

At 31 December

®W+—A=+—8

The balance is repayable within one year and shown under current

liabilities.

The Group issued a bond with a principal amount of HK$1,000,000 in
2023. No transaction costs attributable to the issuance of the bond.
The bond is secured by loans receivables of the Group, amounted to
HK$8,000,000 as described in note 19. The maturity date of the bond
is falling on the first anniversary of the issue date. The interest rate of
the bonds is fixed at 8.5% per annum, and the interest is paid semi-

annually.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 & 84 7% %) 22 Mt 5T (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BEZZ-_=F+-F=+—HIFE

24. DEFERRED TAX 24, EEBIE
The following are deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised by the NTARNEERRCELCHEBEERAE:
Group:

Provision for
impairment
Accelerated on loans

tax receivables

depreciation and CB

B o $6 B 15 %5
IEH IR E B

At 1 January 2022 R-E_—_F—H—H 237,677 (21,837,777) (21,600,100)
Charged to profit or loss FREBREZPOG (FFFE12)

for the year (note 12) (185,327) - (185,327)
At 31 December 2022 RZZEZZF+=ZA=+—H

and 1 January 2023 r=ZZFE=-=%—H—H
Credited to profit or loss FAFRNERERK (MFE12)

for the year (note 12)

At 31 December 2023 RZBEZ=F+=-A=+—H
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for statement AT Rt BB ROR R T = 80 R T I8 4 R
of financial position purposes: Ak

Deferred tax assets IRFE R IE & B 21,785,427
At the end of the reporting period, no deferred tax asset has been MR E BRI R R & FI SRR 2 T HEE
recognised in respect of the tax losses amounted to HK$329,225,510 A It 5 50 FH 18 85 98329,225,5108 L (=&
(2022: HK$324,812,740) due to the unpredictability of future profit T T4 :324,812,740% ) I AR AL
streams. The tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely. BIAEE -HIABE R e B R A4S -

F-ERAEAEEARQF —T_=FFH§
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #=5

B 75 R TR MY BF (continued @)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZE T - =—F+_-_A=-+—HILFE

25. SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

25. XA FRA

Authorised:
250,000,000,000 ordinary shares of

EE:
250,000,000,000%

HK$0.02 each FIR0.02B LW LB 5,000,000,000 5,000,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BITRERE:
3,628,800,000 ordinary shares of 3,628,800,0000%

HK$0.02 each B R%0.02)%8 T B F i AR 72,576,000 72,576,000

26. RESERVES

(A)

GROUP

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein

are presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

and other comprehensive income and consolidated statement

of changes in equity on pages 83 and 86 of this annual report

respectively.

NATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESERVES

0)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
funds in the share premium account of the Company are
distributable to the shareholders of the Company provided
that immediately following the date on which the dividend
is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed in an extraordinary
general meeting held on 24 December 2014, the change
of the domicile of the Company from the Cayman Islands
to Bermuda was approved by the shareholders. The change
of domicile of the Company was completed on 5 February
2015. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the
funds in the share premium account of the Company may
be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #x
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;

26. RESERVES (Cont’d)

(B) NATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESERVES (Cont’d)

(i)

(iif)

Capital reserve

The capital reserve of the Group arose as a result of the
Group’s reorganisation implemented in preparation for the
listing of the Company's shares in 2009 and represented
the difference between the nominal value of the aggregate
share capital of the subsidiaries acquired under the
reorganisation scheme, over the nominal value of the share

capital of the Company issued in exchange therefore.

The capital reserve of the Company arose as a result of the
Group’s reorganisation implemented in preparation for the
listing of the Company's shares in 2009 and represented
the excess of the consolidated net assets of the subsidiaries
acquired, over the nominal value of the share capital of the
Company issued in exchange therefore.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Group and the Company
arose as a result of the Group’s cancellation of the share
premium account of the Company.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, contributed
surplus account is available for distribution to shareholders.
However, the Company cannot declare or pay dividend, or

make a distribution out of contributed surplus if:

- the Company is, or would after the payment be,
unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or

- the realisable value of the Company’'s assets would
thereby be less than its liabilities.

26. & (

(=] B\j %% ﬁﬁ?ﬁ Bﬁ §$ (continued 18)

07

B =T _A=+—HIEEE
%U

/=

(B) RBUEREM (&

(i)

(iif)

E—ERAEREEFRAF

CENEEG

AEBNERFEBHTRAKREE
BREARABROR -_ZZTNF
ErmETEERES BR
BEEAFIRBEONE QRN
BB AEEREARRBIERRE
MmEETHRATE L Z5H -

ARABNERFERHDRALREE
BREARARBRONR_-ZZNEF
EAMETEAREL HC
WHENB AR ERNESEE
FEBHARRIESRRME
THERAEEZE®E -

BARR

REBRARFOHARKRT
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The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’'s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it
in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics
of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adopt various means such as payment of dividends, issuance
of new shares, raising new debts or redemption of existing debts as may
be appropriate in the circumstances.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio. This ratio is
calculated as net debt divided by adjusted capital plus net debt. Net debt
comprises bond payable and lease liabilities less bank and cash balances.
Adjusted capital comprises all components of equity (i.e. share capital,
retained profits and other reserves).

The Group recorded a net cash of approximately HK$3.74 million as
at 31 December 2023 (2022: a net cash of approximately HK$17.93
million). Therefore, the Group has a zero gearing ratio as at 31
December 2023 (2022: zero gearing ratio).

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

The externally imposed capital requirements for the Group is in order to
maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it has to have a public float of
at least 25% of the shares.

The Group receives a report from the share registrars on a monthly
basis on substantial share interests showing the non-public float and it
demonstrates continuing compliance with the minimum 25% public float
requirement throughout the year. As at 31 December 2023, 70.50%
(2022: 70.50%) of the shares were in public hands.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 & 87 35 3R 7% MV 5 (continued #)
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZE_ZT_=F+_A=+—HIFE

27. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 27. EXEBER

FEBEAERNTIZEERARELAER
BEERBBLENRENREFRIFNERL
EoOPXFREEBRENRARREE

FEBERERGEHBIRBEERR 2 E
BREREEzZRRSIEMELARE A&
B A BB R Z R T 5 Pl BR IR
BT BROHEBIBEORAES (W
BR)ARBRALEAREE -

AEERBEEABLETEREAN YLK
DREBFERACHEE ARG FHE
MENAERS - BB FRRERNESR
HEBBERRITMAESESR KHEELRE
AR D (BVBRA RE M & EAM
) -

RZTEZ=F+ZA=+—8 xEEHE
IR & F 493,740,000 L (ZE=Z=F : 1§
& F84917,930,0008 )  E it NEER
—E--H+ A=+ BWBEEAREL
RAT(ZE-_—F EEEBBHLEART)-

HE-_ZT-_=Ffk_ZT=Z=_F+=ZA
T+ —HLEFE AEEEEEANERZ.
BEREFITEED-

AEBRXBRIIRERRERRTHIFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 & 84 7% %) 22 Mt 5T (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BEZZ-_=F+-F=+—HIFE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 28. €T H
(A)  CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS A SETEESR

Financial assets: SRMEE:
Financial assets at FVTPL UAFEFABZOSRMEE 12,131,676
Financial assets at FVTOCI AAFE AR EILED
TRMEE 2,470,000
Financial assets at amortised cost ~ REHK AT ENSBHEE 238,834,294
Financial liabilities: ERIATE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost 1Z# #5 AT EN SR EE 1,131,125
(B)  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE B MHURAFEF=MHEmMIA
(i)  Financial assets at FVTOCI — Unlisted equity (i) BARAFEFAEMEERZE
investment, at fair value e REE—IEEMRAK
& LA TE
The fair value hierarchy is level 3, the following table ANTFEERRE=H TKIR
provided information about how the fair value of financial HEBNAETEARTFEFTA
assets at FVTOCI were determined (in particular, the Hth2HUENSRHEENR
valuation techniques and inputs used), as well as the FE(FINEMERNMGEER
level of the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value i K AN BB ) - A RIBIE AT
measurements based on degree to which the inputs to the B ENE AHEN ] HZRE
fair value measurements were observable. ERETAFEFENATEE

WKFHE R -

31 December

2023

—BC=E

+=A=+-8

HK$

&

Unlisted equity 2,470,000  Net assets value Discount rate of 20.5%  The higher the discount  If discount rate increase/
investment adjusted for lack (2022: 20.6%) for rate, the lower the decrease by 5%, loss increase/
of marketability lack of marketability fair value decrease of HK$16,000

(2022: HK$213,000)

FETBARE 2,470,000 EEFE ki AR Rk K ] BEREHE ATE  AHRREN/H05% BB
(RBpzmis RAZHEE5% HE 3211,/ 16,0008 T
RBMEREE) (ZEZZF:206%) (ZEZZF:213,00057)

F-ERAEAEEARQF —T_=FFH§
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 84 3% %R 72 Mt 5T (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZZ-_=F+-A=+—HIFE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd) 28. €T A (&
(B)  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE (B) NUAFEFFEMNSHIE (£&)

(Cont'd)

There was no transfer between different levels of the fair value HE_T_=FR-_FT-__F+=A
hierarchy during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, =E+—HUEFEE TRAAFEERZ
and there was no change in valuation techniques for the following MY EER - BA T AREE R RS
Group’s financial assets that were measured at fair value on a RIBEFUHREEARNTEFENESH
recurring basis at the end of the reporting period: B E R E R E)

Financial assets at FVTOCI AR FEFAEM 2 E R
MemEE

Financial assets at FVTPL AAFER AR
SREE

Financial assets at FVTOCI AAFER A M2 E s

MepEE - - 2,470,000
Financial assets at FVTPL NAFEFABRED
SREE 12,131,676 - -

12,131,676 - 2,470,000

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED  Annual Report 2023



28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 & 84 7% %) 22 Mt 5T (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BEZZ-_=F+-F=+—HIFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE

(Cont'd)

Reconciliation for financial instruments carried at fair value based

on significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) were as follows:

28. ¢RWT R (&

UNAFEFENERTA (&

ERBEATHERBAZRE (E=R)
NAFEFENSHTAZEERMT

At 1 January 2022 R-_E-_—_F#—H—H 218,000 136,896,000
Change in fair value in FFAHEMEEREN AT EEZS)

other comprehensive income 2,252,000 -
Written off 88 - (136,896,000)
At 31 December 2022 N_E-_—_F+-_A=+—H 2,470,000 -
Change in fair value in FAEMEEAIHAFES

other comprehensive expense (2,208,000) -
At 31 December 2023 R-ZE-_=F+=-HA=+—H 262,000 -

F-ERAEAEEARQF —T_=FFH§
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #=5

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZE T - =—F+_-_A=-+—HILFE
28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

©)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The
Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise

potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

Price Risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk mainly through its
investment in listed equity securities which are classified as
financial assets at FVTPL. The management manages this exposure
by maintaining a portfolio of investments with different risk and
return profiles. The Group's equity price risk is mainly concentrated
on equity securities quoted on the Stock Exchange.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the
exposure to equity price risk at the end of the reporting period.

If equity prices had been 10% higher/lower (2022: 10% higher/
lower), loss after tax for the year would decrease/increase by
approximately HK$0.15 million (2022: decrease/increase by
HK$1.21 million). This is mainly due to the changes in fair value of

held-for-trading investments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 S B4 FE R Z MY 5T (continued )

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(€)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Credit Risk And Impairment Assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s counterparties default
on their contractual obligations resulting in financial losses to the
Group. The Group’s credit risk exposures are primarily attributable
to loans receivables, deposits and other receivables and bank
balances. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements to cover its credit risks associated with its financial
assets.

Loans receivables

The management expected the ECL of loans receivables based on
historical credit loss experience of the customers as well as the
fair value of the collaterals pledged by the customers to the loans
receivables. Based on assessment by the management, the loss
given default is from 25% to 100%.

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group applies
internal credit rating for its customers. The Group considers all
loans receivables (except for unsecured loans with small loan
amount) as doubtful if, on an individual assessment by way of
discounted cash flow, the repayment of principal and/or interest
has been overdue and may not be recoverable and the fair value
of the collateral, in case of secured loans, may not be able to fully
settle the amount of the outstanding principal and/or interest.
Such loans receivables would be considered as loss immediately if
the collection of the principal and/or interest in full is improbable.
For unsecured loans with small loan amount, the Group considers
the loans receivables as loss immediately if the repayment of
principal and/or interest has been overdue and the collection of

the principal and/or interest in full is improbable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 84 3% %R 72 Mt 5T (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE-ZT-_=—F+-_A=-+—HIFE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

©

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (®)}
(Cont'd)

Credit Risk And Impairment Assessment (Cont’d)
Loans receivables (Cont’d)

The following table provided information about the exposure to

credit risk for loans receivables using the Group’s credit rating

28. $W I H (&)

cREAREREERMBE (&

SERRMBERNS (&)
EREF (E)

TERHERREBEEFRERG
HEERERHNEERBRER

system:
2023
—®'-=

Average

loss rate

FHEEE
Performing B4 14% 21,211,868 15% 125,914,795
Doubtful RER 74% 291,590,596 81% 483,854,045
Loss BB 100% 364,239,566 100% 68,174,924
677,042,030 677,943,764

The expected loss rates are estimated based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors and
are adjusted for forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort. The grouping is regularly reviewed
by management to ensure relevant information about specific
customers is updated.

The following table provided information about the analysis of
movement in ECL on individual and collective assessment for loans
receivables excluding accrued interest receivables:

EHEEEDREEBABERFHN
MESBREORMGER IRHBAN
HiB % RN % 0 B ] A5 B AT IR 1
BRHEHRE - EEEEHRST DR
HERE GRS EE P OAMER -

TEREHEBAREBRER (TRIEE
WRERT RSB IRB KRBT MR
HEERBNEIETOMNER:

HK$
AT

ECL allowances for loans receivables:

W ERBHEEBRRE:

1 January 2023 —E=F—A—H 461,500,168
ECL on individual assessment B TEREREERE 130,433,070
ECL on collective assessment ERTHNEREEERE 6,845,751
Reversal of ECL on individual assessment B ENEREEBERD (209,999)
Written-offs i (20,274,252)
31 December 2023 —E-=F+=-A=+—H 578,294,738
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %5 & 84 55 38 2% M 5T (continued &)
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE-ZT-_=F+-_A=-+—HIFE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

©)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Credit Risk And Impairment Assessment (Cont’d)

Loans receivables (Cont'd)

(a)

The following table showed the movement in gross fixed-
rate loans receivables excluding accrued interest receivable:

28. 2T A (&

©

TREAREEIRNBER (&

EERE MRENG (&)
JEWE (&)

(@) TRIIREYGEBEFERE (T

Stage 2
g1

HKS$
&

Gross loans receivables el SR aE
At 1 January 2022 R-ZE-—%-f-H 52,150,037 58,715,921 555,013,556 665,879,514
New loans/financing originated BREMFES/ BE 44,856,000 - - 44,856,000
Loans repaid during the year ENEEENER

(other than write-offs) (HsEBR M) (38,202,720) (1,639) (38,690,721) (76,895,080)
Transfer to 12-month ECL (Stage 1)  BHZT-—EABHESFE

(F—KR) - - - -

Transfer to lifetime ECL not ERZHEENED

credit-impaired (Stage 2) PHEHREERR (B2ER) (41,938,356) 41,938,356 - -
Transfer to lifetime ECL BEZREREN

credit-impaired (Stage 3) SHEREEERE (B2RR) (4,878,928) (3,530,677) 8,409,605 -
Total transfer between stages ZRE ENEREE (46,817,284) 38,407,679 8,409,605 -
Write-offs i - - (48,535,316) (48,535,316)
At 31 December 2022 and RZFZZF+ZA=+-Ak

1 January 2023 “E-=F-f-H 11,986,033 97,121,961 476,197,124 585,305,118
New loansffinancing originated BERATER/RE 27,027,000 - - 27,027,000
Loans repaid during the year FRERENER

(other than write-offs) (MM (10,849,814) (97) (267,350) (11,117,261)
Transfer to 12-month ECL (Stage 1)  EEE+_AAEHEEESE

(5-KR) - - - -

Transfer to lifetime ECL not BRZFEERNED

credit-impaired (Stage 2) FHEHEERR (B2ER) (2,500,000) 2,500,000 = =
Transfer to lifetime ECL BAZEEREN

credit-impaired (Stage 3) SHEREERE (B2RB) (3,590,651) (13,783,605) 17,374,256 -
Total transfer between stages FER ANERLE (6,090,651) (11,283,605) 17,374,256 -
Write-offs ki (1,519,840) (50,084) (18,704,328) (20,274,252)
At 31 December 2023 RZE-=#+-fA=1+-H 20,552,728 85,788,175 474,599,702 580,940,605
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 84 3% %R 72 Mt 5T (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZE T - =—F+_-_A=-+—HILFE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 28. €M T H (#&)
(C)  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES C =REBRESIEBZENEE (&)
(Cont’d)
Credit Risk And Impairment Assessment (Cont’d) EERRMRENS (&)
Loans receivables (Cont'd) JEWEZ ()
(b)  An analysis of changes in the corresponding ECL allowances by HEEHEEBBEREGNED
is as follows: DWW

ECL allowance EHGERERER
At 1 January 2022 W-Z--%-f—H 3,072,673 MA77,217 450,746,363 464,996,253
New loans/financing originated BEENNER BE 630,660 - - 630,660
Loans repaid during the year EREERHER

(other than write-offs) (s (887,945) (228) (34,734,667) (35,622,840)
Transfer to 12-month ECL (Stage 1) ERET-ERER

FEER(E-KR) - - - -

Transfer to lifetime ECL not ERTACENENZHES

credit-impaired (Stage 2) EEBE(£-KR) (1,797,863) 1,797,863 - -
Transfer to lifetime ECL BRELT Aﬁfﬁﬁ’]?ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ

credit-impaired (Stage 3) FEBR(E=RR) (528,196) (3,061,242) 3,589,438 -
Total transfer between stages EFRBE ANERAE (2,326,059) (1,263,379) 3,589,438 -
Movements due to changes in credit risk EEEREEERNEE) 188,190 5,150,448 72,797,360 78,135,998
Write-offs s - - (46,639,903) (46,639,903)
At 31 December 2022 and RIBZZEFZA=+-BR

1 January 2023 :2:_5 A—H 677,519 15,064,058 445,758,591 461,500,168
New loans/financing originated BERNNEN/BE 5,767,213 - - 5,767,213
Loans repaid during the year FREEBHER

(other than write-offs) (s (181,828) (22) (222,475) (404,325)

Transfer to 12-month ECL (Stage 1) SRS+ -_[ARES
EEEE (8-KR) - - = =
f

Transfer to lifetime ECL not BREEEERENZBES

credit-impaired (Stage 2) EEEE (E2RKR) (1,312,193) 1,312,193 - -
Transfer to lifetime ECL B Y ?WEE’J%H\ME%@

credit-impaired (Stage 3) EEEE (FZKR) (3,590,651) - 3,590,651 -
Total transfer between stages & Eﬁ ZNEREE (4,902,844) 1,312,193 3,590,651 -
Movements due to changes in credit risk 1 ERZHERNED 1,748,944 29,660,781 99,891,884 131,301,609
Write-offs i fﬁ (105,150) (8,805) (19,755,972) (19,869,927)
At 31 December 2023 WZEZ=%+-A=+-H 3,003,854 46,028,205 529,262,679 578,294,738

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2023



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 S B4 FE R Z MY 5T (continued )

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

©

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Credit Risk And Impairment Assessment (Cont’d)

During the year ended 31 December 2023, certain borrowers
failed to settle the loan principal and interests which constituted
a default event. Accordingly, ECL is changed to be measured
by lifetime ECL. The principal amount and the corresponding
ECL of HK$2,500,000 and HK$1,312,193, respectively, (2022:
HK$41,938,356 and HK$1,797,863, respectively) were then
reclassified from stage 1 to stage 2.

In addition, certain loans receivables were defaulted by the
borrowers for more than 180 days. In the opinion of the directors,
these loans receivables were credit-impaired. The principal amount
and the corresponding ECL of HK$17,374,256 and HK$3,590,651,
respectively, (2022: HK$8,409,605 and HK$3,589,438,
respectively) were then reclassified from stages 1 and 2 to stage 3.

Concentration of credit risk

Secured loans made up to approximately 11% (2022:
approximately 11%) of the total gross loans receivables as at
31 December 2023. Such collaterals comprised unlisted equity
securities and luxury goods pledged against the balances. As at
31 December 2023, the fair value of properties collateralised for
the second mortgage loans before discounting credit protections
available to the first mortgagees amounted to Nil (2022:
approximately HK$12.50 million). The fair value/net asset value
of other collaterals which mainly include unlisted equity securities
and luxury goods amounted to approximately HK$88.40 million
(2022: approximately HK$88.09 million).

The gross carrying amount of secured loans collateralised with
assets other than property is HK$130,236,317. Among these
loans, an amount of HK$88,403,000 is collateralised, leaving a
net amount of HK$42,467,000 uncollateralised. A total expected
credit loss of HK$101,256,147 has been provided, representing
77% of the gross amount of the loan balance.

E_T =Gy =gy HiSE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %55 84 55 3 22 MY 5 (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE-ZT-_=—F+-_A=-+—HIFE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

()

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Credit Risk And Impairment Assessment (Cont’d)
Other receivables and deposits

For other receivables and deposits, the management makes
periodic individual assessment on the recoverability of other
receivables and deposits based on historical settlement records,
past experience, and also quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportive forward-looking information.
The management believes that there is no significant increase in
credit risk of these amounts since initial recognition and the Group
provided impairment based on 12m ECL. For the years ended
31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group assessed the ECL for
other receivables and deposits are insignificant and thus no loss
allowance is recognised.

Bank balances

The Group's exposure to credit risk arising from bank balances
is limited because the counterparties are reputable banks
and financial institutions with high credit-rating assigned by
international credit-rating agencies, for which the Group considers
to have low credit risk.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to meet its
payment obligations when they are due. The Group manages its
liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and the availability
of funding from shareholders of the Company and adequate
committed lines of funding from financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements. The directors are responsible to ensure the
Group maintains sufficient capital funding and credit lines to meet
liquidity requirements. This is achieved by projecting cash flows on
a regular basis. The accounts department of the Group monitors
and reports the funding needs to management.

The following table showed the remaining contractual maturities
at the end of the reporting period of the Group's non-derivative
financial liabilities, which were based on contractual undiscounted
cash flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the end
of the reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can be
required to pay:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 & 84 7% %) 22 Mt 5T (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZE_ZT_=F+_A=+—HIFE

28. $RWT A (&

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(C)  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Liquidity Risk (Cont’d)

©

cREAREEERNBE (&

mEEERR (&)

More than
Weighted On demand 1 year but Total
Average or lessthan  not exceeding  undiscounted Carrying
Interest rate 1 year 2 years cash flows amount
BREXS SR-% KR
MEFHH = DR-F [ETREFE KRERELH RE(E
HKS$ HK$ HKS$
&L E E
At 31 December 2023 R-B-=f£+-HA=+-H
Accruals and other payables s BRREMENFKE - 823,606 - 823,606 823,606
At 31 December 2022 R-¥-Z£+-A=+-H
Accruals and other payables JEst B R R AMENTIE - 1,131,125 - 1,131,125 1,131,125

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates. The Group’s interest rate risk arises
primarily from lease liabilities, bond payable, interest-bearing loans
receivables, bank and cash balances. Loans receivables and bank
and cash balances at variable rates and at fixed rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate
risk respectively. The Group does not use financial derivatives
to hedge against the interest rate risk. The Group's interest rate
profile as monitored by the management of the Group is set out
below.

AR E R
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RITRRESER - BIFBNEREE
MEFEZEBREFTARRITRERS
EHoRSAREHERRESREN X
2 B B 2 S (B ) R R By o A SR B 0 A
EAEROTET A E KRR A
SEREEREEER NIRRT
T

F-ERAEAEEARQF —T_=FFH§

149



150

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 84 3% %R 72 Mt 5T (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZZ-_=F+-A=+—HIFE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd) 28. €W TH (&
(C)  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES C cEEREEEEREE (&)

(Cont'd)
Interest Rate Risk (Cont'd) FEmb (&)
Interest Rate Profile: FIEBER -
The following table, as reported to the management of the TREIMAEEERBEZ®R BR
Group, details the interest rate risk profile of the Group’s deposits/ AEE MRS I8 R FI & B AR
borrowings at the end of the reporting period: IR

Fixed rate deposits/(borrowings): BEFHZEHER  (EHK) :

Loans receivables (gross carrying WS (REELE)
amounts) 677,943,764
Bond payable FERIE -
677,943,764
Variable rate deposits: FEIFIEFER:
Bank balances RITEE R 19,639,200
19,639,200

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED  Annual Report 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #=5

S 35 TR MY 5 (continued i)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZE_ZT_=F+_A=+—HIFE
28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Interest Rate Risk (Cont'd)
Sensitivity Analysis

The sensitivity analysis below is presented for the Group's bank
deposits and loans receivables and payable at floating interest
rates.

Change in basis points

3T
2023

k- Sl

Bank deposits RATR +/-50

Effect on profit after tax

HRBERNHZE HESNTE
2023 2023

—¥z=%

28. WM T H (#&)

cREAREEERNBE (&

MERER (&)

HBE T
REBRFEFETOIRITEFRIAR
JRE s K e B R BURE 0 AT 2 51 40
To

Effect on equity

—gC-=H

18,641 98,496 18,641 98,496

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous change
in the Group's loss after tax (and accumulated losses) and other
components of consolidated equity that would arise assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments held by the Group which expose the Group
to fair value interest rate risk at the end of the reporting period.
In respect of the exposure to cash flow interest rate risk arising
from floating rate non-derivative instruments held by the Group
at the end of the reporting period, the impact on the Group's
loss after tax (and accumulated losses) and other components
of consolidated equity is estimated as an annualised impact on
interest expense or income of such a change in interest rates. The
analysis is performed on the same basis as 2022.

LTHBRESWER BRANEEH
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SEERATENXREROSHTA
AR EBHOBRBRER (RE2EEBEER)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7& 84 75 2R 28 MY 55 continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZE T - =—F+_-_A=-+—HILFE

29. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 2. MEEBFTEA BB ZHER
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

TREINASEREZTHMELEBEZE
PAE BERASRIRGEY -HEFTY
FEANBEARSRECKAERKR
eREBERNEAEEGARENERDHE
REBERINRERENEE-

The table below showing the detail changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities were those for which cash flows
were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group's consolidated
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

Bond
[EVELIL

Lease
liabilities

FE £ 5 35 HEAR

At 1 January 2022 RZEZ=—F—HA—H 9,072,986 2,035,556 11,108,542
Payment of lease liabilities HEBEMNK - (1,372,752) (1,372,752)
Payment of bond payable FEREHRR (9,000,000) - (9,000,000)
Interest paid [EENEUESS (472,679) (151,248) (623,927)
Interest expenses FBHAX 399,693 151,248 550,941
At 31 December 2022 and RZE-_—_F+-_A=+—HRK

1 January 2023 e - 662,804 662,804
Proceeds from financing activities BEBDME fﬁ’\lﬁ 1,000,000 272,167 1,272,167
Payment of lease liabilities HEBBNK = (718,548) (718,548)
Interest paid EFE (21,425) (110,049) (131,474)
Interest expenses FERZ 38,425 110,049 148,474
At 31 December 2023 RZTE—_=F+-_A=+—H 1,017,000 216,423 1,233,423
Analysed by: 2R
At 31 December 2023 WoZE-Z=F+-A=+—H
— Bond payable —ERES 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
— Interest payable recognised — R IERTE A R E A ER IR

in accruals and other payables TR E JE RS 17,000 - 17,000

— Lease liabilities —HEak - 216,423 216,423
At 31 December 2022 RZEZZF+=ZA=+—H
~ Lease liabilities —-HE8E - 662,804 662,804

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2023



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 & 84 7% %) 22 Mt 5T (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BEZZ-_=F+-F=+—HIFE

30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 30.BERRS
COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL OF THE TEEFEEEAENHE
GROUP
The remuneration of directors, who comprised the key management ER(PEASEIZEBAB)FANS
personnel of the Group, during the year was as follows: BT

Short term employee benefits including R HEESEF (BEHF -

salaries, paid annual leaves and BHFBRIER)
sick leaves 2,455,000
Post-employment benefits B8 RIKEF 30,000
2,485,000

F-ERAEAEEARQF —T_=FFH§
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 84 3% %R 72 Mt 5T (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZZ-_=F+-A=+—HIFE

31. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 31. KX RIFEMEB A AIFEE
OF THE COMPANY

RZEZ=FR_FZ_=ZF+=ZA=+—
B ARREZELHEAEFEZETENHB AR

Details of the principal subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by the
Company as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 were as follows:

REEEIT

First Holdings Consortium Limited British Virgin Islands US$19,230,767 100 - Investment holding
RERAEE 19,230,767 7T RELR

First Credit (China) Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 100 - Inactive

E-EREB(PE)ERAR EE 17 gmex

Asia Wealth Financial Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands US$90 100 - Investment holding
ERRREHE 90XTT REER

Capital First Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 100 - Investment holding

EXE-BRERRA EERRES (ESH REER

Gorgeous Investment Holding Limited British Virgin Islands Us$100 100 = Inactive
AERREE 100%7T HEex

First Credit Limited Hong Kong HK$153,550,000 - 100 Provision and

arrangement of
credit facilities

E-ERUBERAR B 153,550,000 0 RERTHERRE

Honour Event Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 - 100 Inactive
AERREE B fmex

Asia Wealth Securities Limited Hong Kong HK$90,000,000 - 100 Investment in securities

SNAEEFERAT i 90,000,000/ 7 EHRE

First Credit (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Inactive

E-EREB(ER)ERAR i 10,000/ T gmex

First Credit Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Property holding

E-ERERBERAT A 1B BENE

Note: All the above subsidiaries are limited liability companies.
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32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %7 S B4 ¥ 3R 22 M 5T (continued )

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZE_ZT_=F+_A=+—HIFE

2. ARAIMBRARRFREE

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(A)

B)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

B

(A)

EN/NCT RN

Non-current assets ERFEE
Investments in subsidiaries R ERRHIRE 788 788
Current assets REEE
Prepayments, deposits and BEBNRE -ZE2R

other receivables H i FE U FRTE 1,280,619 1,275,549
Due from subsidiaries i syENGIE e 106,706,144 268,460,370
Bank and cash balances RITRB &R 1,137,230 1,354,526
Total current assets REEELRE 109,123,993 271,090,445
Current liabilities RE&E
Due to subsidiaries JES B B A R R 370,298 788
Total current liabilities mBAERE 370,298 788
NET CURRENT ASSETS RENEEFE 108,753,695 271,089,657
NET ASSETS BEFE 108,754,483 271,090,445
Capital and Reserves BERRGEE
Share capital g 7 25 72,576,000 72,576,000
Reserves ] 32(B) 36,178,483 198,514,445
TOTAL EQUITY WS EE 108,754,483 271,090,445

MOVEMENT IN THE COMPANY'S RESERVE (B) ARQAFHEEE

Share Capital  Contributed Accumulated

premium reserve surplus losses

Rt i R EXRE HNBE Eg 5t

HKS HK$ HK$ HK$
At 1 January 2022 R-ZF-=#-7—-H 356,661,862 138,279,615 213,460,470  (387,480,964) 320,920,983
Loss for the year FREE - - - (122,406,538) (122,406,538)
At 31 December 2022 RZEZZE+-A=+—-8 356,661,862 138,279,615 213,460,470  (509,887,502) 198,514,445
Loss for the year FREE - - - (162,335,962) (162,335,962)
At 31 December 2023 RZEZ=%+-H=+-H 356,661,862 138,279,615 213,460,470  (672,223,464) 36,178,483

E-EREREEERAR —ZT-=F5H
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Financial Summary (4 #¥ @B &

FINANCIAL RESULTS B ¥EE

Revenue, other income and Wz E A K&

other gain and loss Hiph xR ER 21,872,511 60,998,435 36,865,540 84,971,551
Loss before tax BRI AIEE (182,684,775) (26,622,536)  (358,389,707) (157,326,068)
Income tax credit/(expense) Frisfigke,/ (BX) 203,286 (4,914,434) (9,221,821) 24,432,997
Loss for the year ENEE (182,481,489)  (31,536,970) (367,611,528) (132,893,071)

Loss and total comprehensive LA F AT EEEIER

expense attribute to: 2EFXEE:
Owners of the Company NNSIEZYEUN (180,229,489)  (32,110,970) (367,611,528)  (132,893,071)
Non-controlling interests IR ER - - - -
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY EE AERER

Total assets BERE 281,508,203 472,127,890 508,516,669 868,446,554
Total liabilities BEBE (1,905,311)  (12,295,509)  (16,573,318) (8,891,675)

279,602,892 459,832,381 491,943,351 859,554,879

Equity attributable to owners — AARIHEH AEIHEZ
of the Company 279,602,892 459,832,381 491,943,351 859,554,879
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